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Chairman’s Statement =fFE#H &%

I am pleased to present the annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Continuing the profitability reported in the first half of 2009,
Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”, together
with ifs subsidiaries, “Group”) recorded a 23.2% increase in gross
profit to HKD347,06%9,000 for the whole year ended 31 December
2009, notwithstanding a decline of 13.0% in turnover compared to
last year. The appreciable increase in gross profit was predominantly
due to the effective cost control programs adopted and strategic
allocation of resources by the Group during the year.

BRANDING

2009 was still a cultivating year for the branding business of the
Group. As a result of the prolonged world recession, the recovery
of economy was at slow pace. In United States, the persistent
high unemployment rate undermined the domestic consumption
and affected the retail industry. While in the East, the retail market
was slowed down. Nevertheless, the Group was strengthening its
branding business.

The results of Pony and Haggar were improving. During the year,
we contfinued to implement a comprehensive restructuring in
Pony. At the same time, we expanded the Pony licensee portfolio
to include certain European and American conglomerates that
the Group believed they will be positively pushing forward the
Pony brand globally. Amongst, the Argentina licensee performed
outstandingly and quadrupled its minimum royalty payable during
the year. Another strategy for Pony is to diversify intfo Direct-to-
Retail business. The management believes that the DTR model will
benefit Pony by maintaining its existing global licensee relationship
with minimum sales support. In 2010, Pony will continue to look for
seasoned licensees in order to expand its global network. Meantime,
it will strategically focus on re-launching its heritage line of footwear
and develop fashionable products to meet the market trend and
needs. On the other hand, Pony has successfully broadened its
recognition in PRC in 2009. The turnover of Pony China for the year
tripled while the number of points-of-sale increased to 89 spreading
across the country. Owing to initial expansion of Pony in China, it is
foreseen that certain set up cost will be incurred and the Group is
cautious in monitoring its expenditure with the aim of achieving profit
maximisation.
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Haggar forged its path during the year. By implementing stringent
cost control policy, the efficiency at Haggar was improved.
Moreover, Haggar has employed a seasoned marketing specialist
to formulate an effective marketing strategy. It is expected that the
EBITA of Haggar will further strengthen in 2010.

Being the licensee, distributor and/or franchisee for Speedo,
Berghaus, Helly Hansen and Mango in China, the Group engaged
in many important endeavours to encourage and improve the
operations of the brands. Despite the fact that the PRC retail market,
especially the sporting goods sector, was slowed down in 2009
weathering the global economic downturn, the Group maintained
a steady growth in the branding business. During the year, sales of
Speedo increased by 117%, adding 21 points-of-sale with most of
them operated by franchisees. This strategy enabled the Group to
increase its market share by appointing experienced franchisees
and simultaneously reducing the management cost of the brand.
In 2010, Speedo targets to sign up 66 franchised points-of-sale in
second tier cities. Following the official launch of Berghaus at the
British Embassy in Beijing last June, we have opened 9 Berghaus
points-of-sale in strategic first tier city locations in China during the
year. Berghaus plans to further open 20 directly managed and
franchised points-of-sale in China in 2010. During the year, the
turnover of Mango grew significantly and there are plans to open
up to 5 Mango stores at high-traffic locations in selected key cities.
The first Helly Hansen store will be opened at a prime Beijing location
in April 2010, followed by approximately 10 more stores at strategic
locations by the end of the year.

Having said that, the increase in raw material cost, the decline in
selling price and the intensified promotional activities had impacted
the profit margin in the industry. We remain cautiously optimistic
about the growth of the PRC retail market given that the Group'’s
competitive advantage of a basket of valuable brands.

RETAILING

JFT is a joint venture between the Company and Toyota Tsusho
Corporation, a member of the renowned Japanese conglomerate,
Toyota Motor Corporation, for the refailing and marketing of
apparels, footwear and accessories originafing from Japan, Europe
and the United Statfes. Following the grand opening in the busy
shoppers-frequented Causeway Bay of its first flagship store in
August last year, the second JFT store landed in Tsimshatsui, a highly
concenfrated tourist area in Hong Kong. JFT's current portfolio
covers over 100 brands and includes Japanese top golf fashion
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brand Heal Creek and Viva Heart, and the internationally renowned
Edwin jeans. In March 2010, JFT became the exclusive distributor for
Edwin in Hong Kong and Macau. There are plans to open up to 7
additional points-of-sale for Edwin in Hong Kong. On the whole, JFT
strives every opportunity to expand its brand portfolio and point-of
sale as its prime strategy to enhance its value.

OUTLET MALL

Grasping the opportunity of blooming domestic consumption in
China, the Company has plans to diversify tfo outflet mall business.
During the year, the Company acquired the land use rights in
Shenyang, China. The land is located at Hushi Tai Development
Zone of Shenbei New District, which is a new administrative zone
approved by the State Council as pilot new development in
Northeast China. Superbly located adjacent to Puhe Road, the
major highway of Shenbei, the Company will develop the land into
a mixed-use development of factory outlet mall, entertainment
complexes and eco-industrial attractions with an attributable gross
floor area of 60,705 square mefres, covering the world’s premium
brands at bargain. We are currently undergoing architectural design
and preliminary leasing work. Construction work for the first phase
is scheduled fo commence in 2010. We believe that the outlet mall
will create synergistic value to our brands and further strengthen our
branding business.

MANUFACTURING

The footwear manufacturing division maintained satisfactory results
despite the challenging business operating environment facing
the Group in PRC. During the year, the Group has reorganised its
production facilities and adopted a tightened cost conftrol in its
manufacturing plants. By relocating its production lines fo Vietham,
our footwear manufacturing division benefited from its relatively
low labour and fransportation cost. Although the turnover of the
footwear manufacturing division was slightly impacted by the
migration of production facilities this year, the Group is confident
that the reorganisation and consolidation will provide a profound
interest to the manufacturing division. We expected to pick up the
momentum in the years to follow.
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The global economic downturn is a proven opportunity for us.
As a result of effective cost control and precise expansion, we
have achieved and improved efficiency of the Group. During the
year, efforts have been made fo lower our manufacturing cost
margin, focus on our branding efforts, recruit talented personnel
fo stfrengthen our feam as well as increase our market share
strategically.

Although there will unquestionably continue to be uncertainties
in the road ahead, we remain cautiously optfimistic about the
future of the global economic recovery. Despite the pressure on
appreciation of Renminbi, weak United States dollars, unstable
global political environment, trade protectionalism and the credit
threat in Europe, the Group continues to implement cautious
policies to cope with and manage the mountfing risk and cost
arising from operations. In future, we aim at taking advantage of
our current strengths to explore investment opportunities as well as
develop projects that create synergy to our existing investments so
as fo maximise our shareholders’ value. In particular, we are well-
positioned in the China retail market, which is a strategic market
given ifs upsurge of internal demands and consumpftion power.
We believe that our branding business, retailing business and the
future outlet mall development are well-aligned to benefit from
the Chinese governmental policies on encouraging domestic
consumption.

Chan Ting Chuen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, the turnover of the Group
decreased by 13.0% to HKD1,748,907,000, being adversely affected
by decrease of orders from relocation of production facilities
and soft consumer markets worldwide. Nevertheless, stringent
cost control and strategic allocation of resources enabled the
Group to return to profitability and thereby recording an increase
in gross profit margin to 19.4%. Profit attributable to shareholders
was HKD19,008,000. The improvement in efficiency in the branding
business contributes to a substantial decrease by 42.3% in operating
loss of jointly controlled entities.

The Company acquired the land use rights in Shenyang in 2009 and
leased out one of its properties located in Hong Kong. Accordingly,
the investment properties increased to HKD331,040,000,

During the year, the efficiency of the Company improved. Trade
and other receivables greatly reduced by 52.6%. This was due to
effective collection of debts and receivables. Trade and other
payables were reduced through improved working relationship
with suppliers. The decrease in inventory is attributable to product
diversification and therefore reduced in costly raw materials for
production.

The Group disposed of certain held-for-trading investment which
comprises shares of various listed companies.

MANUFACTURING AND RETAILING BUSINESS
MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, sales to the United States of America and Canada
comprised 54.4% (2008: 49.6%) and orders to other European
countries comprised 28.1% (2008: 31.6%) of the total sales and the
remaining 17.5% (2008: 18.8%) was shared between Asia, Africa,
Australia, Latin America and the Middle East.
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

As af 31 December 2009, the Group had an aggregate number of
35 production lines, of which 7 are in Panyu, 10 are in Zhongshan, 6
are in Fuzhou, and a further 12 are in Vietnam. During the year, the
Group has closed down 4 production lines in Dongguan.

STORES NETWORK

The Group had directly managed and franchised stores in mainland
China for the retail and distribution of 4 globally renowned brands.
Below is a breakdown by brand and store type:

Speedo RibE
Pony Pony
Berghaus B8
Mango TR

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MAINTENANCE AND
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Our extensive experience and working knowledge on
manufacturing process, production materials and procurement
allows us to work closely with our customers to achieve quality
and efficiency and produce cost-effective products. Our dynamic
brands development team provides their expertise and foresighted
advice to our customers on the refail and wholesale market in
mainland China. The maintenance of close relationship with our
customers has built an in-depth understanding of their needs so
that we are capable of anticipating and resolving their problems
expeditiously and effectively. Our research and development team
improves products design to maximise their comfort, endurance
and functionality, and where necessary, infroduces new technology
to enhance their market appeal. Our value-added contributions
enable us fo maintain long-term partnership with our customers.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had bank balances and
cash of HKD399,184,000 (2008: HKD280,963,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD236,250,000 (2008:
HKD117,500,000), none of which had been utilised, indicating a zero
gearing ratio on the basis of total borrowings over shareholders’
fund. The banking facilities were secured by corporate guarantees
from the Company and its certain subsidiaries.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2009, the total number of employees of the
Group was approximately 14,000. Employee cost (excluding
directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD358,950,000
(2008: HKD430,725,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and employee options are awarded to eligible staff of the
Group based on their performance and individual merits.
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Mr. Chan, Ting Chuen, aged 62, Chairman
(appointed on 9 March 2009)

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Chan graduated
with a Bachelor degree in civil engineering from the University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is also a director of each of Royal Pacific
Limited, First Dynamic International Limited (“First Dynamic”) and
Well Success Investment Limited (“Well Success”), all of which are
deemed or direct substantial shareholders of the Company under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO").

Mr. Sze, Sun Sun Tony, aged 58, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
(appointed on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 25 June 2007)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony joined the Group in 1997. He has over 29 years
experience in investment and property development in Hong Kong,
mainland China and overseas markets. He is also a director of each
of Alexon International Limited ("Alexon"), First Dynamic and Well
Success, all of which are deemed or direct substantial shareholders
of the Company under SFO.

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan, aged 62, Deputy Chairman
(appointed on 1 February 2005 and re-elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan joined the Group aft its inception in 1990
and is the founder of the manufacturing business of the Group.
Mr. Chang is a substantial shareholder of Well Success, a direct
substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, he holds
indirect interests in the Company. Mr. Chang is also the President
of the manufacturing division of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Mr. Chang has over 30 years of experience and knowledge in the
footwear manufacturing industry.

Mr. Chan, Lu Min, aged 55
(appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-elected on 12 June 2008)

Mr. Chan Lu Min graduated from the Chung Hsing University
in Taiwan and possesses 30 years of finance and accounfing
experience. Mr. Chan is also an executive director of Yue Yuen
Industrial (Holdings) Limited (“Yue Yuen™) (HKSE: 00551), a company
engaged in shoes manufacturing that is listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”). Yue Yuen is deemed
a substantial shareholder of the Company under SFO.
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Ms. Chen, Fang Mei, aged 47
(appointed on 8 July 2009)

Ms. Chen Fang Mei graduated with a Bachelor degree of
International Business from Soochow University in Taiwan in 1986
and has over 20 years of experience in investment and financial
management. During 2001 to 2004, she was the vice president
and head of underwriting of Citibank Securities (Taiwan) Limited.
Ms. Chen is the spokesperson and vice president of Pou Chen
Corporation (“Pou Chen") (TSE: 9904) since 2004. Pou Chen is a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation and
a deemed substantial shareholder of the Company under SFO.
Ms. Chen is also an executive director of Eagle Nice (International)
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 02368), a company engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of sportswear and garments that is listed
on the Exchange.

Dr. Ho, Ting Seng, aged 61
(appointed on 7 April 2006 and re-elected on 12 June 2008)

Dr. Ho Ting Seng graduated from the University of Malaya and
holds both his Master and Doctor degrees from the University of
Pennsylvania, United States of America. He previously worked
as the first Chief Economist of Worldwide Operations at Federal
Express Corporation. Before joining the Group, Dr. Ho ran his own
consultancy business specialising in multi-model logistics network
design to support direct sourcing and distribution activities of
manufacturer clients in China and Asia.

Mr. Li, I-Nan, aged 68
(appointed on 28 June 2002 and re-elected on 12 June 2008)

Mr. Li has many years of experience in the footwear business
including sourcing and wholesale operafions. He is an executive
director of Yue Yuen, a company engaged in shoes manufacturing
that is listed on the Exchange. Yue Yuen is a deemed substantial
shareholder of the Company under SFO. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor
degree and a Master of Arts degree from the Natfional Chengchi
University in Taiwan and a Master of Arts degree from the University of
Southern California. In addition, Mr. Liis also a member of the audit
committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”).
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Mr. Cheng, Kar Shing, aged 57
(appointed on 4 June 1997 and re-elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing holds a Master degree in engineering from the
University of California in Los Angeles, United States. Mr. Cheng has
been a director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited (formerly
known as NWD (Hotels Investments) Limited) since 1984 and New
World Development Company Limited (“New World Development”)
since 1994. New World Development is a company listed on the
Exchange (HKSE: 00017). He is also an executive director of New
World China Land Limited (HKSE: 00917) and an independent non-
executive director of King Fook Holdings Limited (HKSE: 00280).
In addition, Mr. Cheng is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”).

Mr. Feng, Lei Ming, aged 52
(appointed on 12 May 2003 and re-elected on 10 June 2009)

Mr. Feng Lei Ming graduated with an MBA in finance from the
University of Memphis, Tennessee, United States of America. Mr. Feng
has over 15 years of experience in the Hong Kong securities industry
and is a registered responsible officer of various regulated activities
with the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong. He is
currently the Managing Director of KGI Capital Asia Limited. Before
he started fo work in Hong Kong in 1994, Mr. Feng was responsible
for sales planning at National Electric Appliance Corp. and A.C.
Nielsen in Taiwan. In addition, Mr. Feng is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the chairman of Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Ho, Shing Chak, aged 50
(appointed on 30 December 2004 and re-elected on 25 June 2007)

Mr. Ho Shing Chak is a certfified public accountant in Hong Kong.
He graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in business administration and holds a Bachelor
of Laws degree from the Peking University. He previously worked for
a reputable international accounting firm and is currently running
his own business. Mr. Ho is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Cerfified Accountants and is also an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addifion, Mr.
Ho is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneratfion Committee.
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Mr. Huang, Shenglan, aged 58
(appointed on 8 July 2009)

Mr. Huang Shenglan holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong
Normal University, a master degree in International Economics
from Huadong Normal University and a certificate in International
Economic Law in Xiamen University. He also took the Advanced
Management Programme from the Business School of Harvard
University, United States of America. Mr. Huang has over 20 years of
experience in the banking and corporate financing industry. He had
been appointed the executive director of Everbright Bank of China,
Beijing and China Everbright Technology Limited (currently China
Haidian Holdings Limited) (HKSE: 00256). Mr. Huang has been serving
as the Deputy General Manager of ICBC International Holdings
Limited in Hong Kong since 2005. He has also been an independent
non-executive director of each of Burwell Holdings Limited (HKSE:
00024) since 2004 and China LotSynergy Holdings Limited (HKSE:
08161) since 2002, both companies are listed on the Exchange.
Since 2003, Mr. Huang has also been appointed an independent
director of Chongging Road & Bridge Co. Ltd. (SSE: 600106), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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The directors of Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries “Group”) (“Director”’) have
pleasure in presenting the annual report (“Annual Report”) and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are manufacturing and frading of footwear,
frading, retailing and distribution of licensed products, property
investment and investments holding. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and jointly confrolled entities are set out in Notes 36 and
16 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 32 to 33 of the Annual Report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. As a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009, Directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKD0.013 per
ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Monday, 14 June 2010.
The total amount of final dividend payable is approximately
HKD?22,673,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s buildings and freehold land were revalued at
31 December 2009. The revaluation resulted in a surplus of
approximately HKD12,194,000 which was credited directly fo the
properties revaluation reserve.

During the year, the Group re-classified various building units
and related prepaid lease payments with carrying amounts of
approximately HKD21,113,000 and HKD25,200,000 respectively to
investment properties.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Nofe 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2009 were fair
valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
on an open market value basis. The net increase in fair value of
approximately HKD57,750,000 was credited directly to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2009, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
were as follows:

Share premium &= E
Contributed surplus EEAR
Share options reserve R
Accumulated profits B

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
conftributed surplus and share premium if:

BEYE

R2009F 12 A31 8 AEENREMEDH
— BB EEYELEMRARIEARMEEER
ERETAFEESER  ATFEEEINFED
57,750,000 0B B FF AR ©
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SN
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(a)  the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)
(appointed as Chairman on 9 March 2009)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald (resigned as Chairman
and Executive Director on 23 January 2009)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Ms. Chen Fang Mei (appointed on 8 July 2009)

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Mr. Ku Edward Y. (deceased on 30 March 2009)

NoON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li I Nan

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Huang Shenglan (appointed on 8 July 2009)

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
Laws”), Mr. Ho Shing Chak, Dr. Ho Ting Seng, Mr. Li | Nan and Mr.
Sze Sun Sun Tony refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service confract which is not determinable
by the Group within 1 year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share optfion scheme adopted on
22 October 2001 (“2001 Scheme”) are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000 share opfions
at an exercise price of HKD1.032 each to Directors and the other
eligible participants.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, none of the share opftions
granted and oufstanding was exercised. During the year, a number
of 30,000,000 share options lapsed. On 31 August 2009, a totfal
of 48,510,000 share options, representing the entire granted and
outstanding share opftions expired.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of Directors
and chief executives and their associates of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant fo Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code"), were as follows:

LoNnG PosiTions

Ordinary shares of HKD0.25 each in the Company (“Shares”):

B

AARF 2001 F10 A 22 BATERM 2 B
£1(72001 38 ) WEBEHRAGAMBHRE
BsE25 -

R 2006FE8 A2H © AR A#%2001 5 &%
166,050,000 R IE FEE LA EIRSHEE -
BRITEEA1.032/87T -
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Number of issued ordinary shares held by

e RTEERYE Percentage of

Spouse and/or Total the issued

children number of share capital of

Beneficial under 18 Controlled  Discretionary ordinary  the Company

Director Notes owner BER/ 3 corporation trust shares {EARDREET
= ks ZHA 18EATFZ BREE 2EER  EEREHE REESL
ChanTing Chuen BRI 1,2 5,000,000 - - 851,685,958 856,685,958 49.12%
Chang Tsung Yuan RIH 1,4 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 0.34%
Sze Sun Sun Tony ik i 1,3 - - 851,685,958 - 851,685,958 48.83%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2009, Well Success Investment Limited (“Well
Success”) had a direct interest in 851,685,958 Shares. First Dynamic
International Limited (“First Dynamic”) held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of Well Success. Accordingly, First Dynamic was
deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 Shares.

2. Royal Pacific Limited (“Royal Pacific”) held more than one-third of
the issued share capital of First Dynamic and is wholly-owned by
TC Chan Family Holdings Limited (“TCCFHL"), which in turn is wholly-
owned by TC Chan Family Holdings Limited (“TCCM(PTC)L"), which is
a trustee of a discretionary trust. Ultimately, Royal Pacific was held by
a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (“Mr. Chan”) and
his family members were the discretionary beneficiaries and Mr. Chan
was the founder. Accordingly, Mr. Chan was deemed to be interested
in 851,685,958 Shares. As at 31 December 2009, Mr. Chan was directly
interested in 5,000,000 Shares.

3. Alexon International Limited (*Alexon”) held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of First Dynamic. Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (“Mr. Sze")
was interested in the entire issued share capital of Alexon and was
therefore deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 Shares.

4. Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan was a substantial shareholder of Well Success, in
which he held 20% of its issued share capital.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Options”, none of
the Directors, chief executives nor their associates had any interest
or short position in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2009.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Opftions”, at no fime during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No confract of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any fime during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2009, the following Shareholders had notfified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

(1) Long Posimions

Shares of HKD0.25 each of the Company

EEREEEY
KR
RAFERATEEMBREA - BEEERA

REAREEFMBRBMITINERZENTE
EREHESEANE -

FERRK

RIEEH R HE R 5 5G] 58 336 16 E AR A
HEEOETERRECMETE - AREERER
2009 12 A31 B AN AR BB EITIRA Z A8
B RARIT

1 EB

AAREERO0.25 ETHRG

Number of issued Shares Percentage of
ERITRG the issued share
Deemed capital of the
Direct interests Total Company
Shareholder Notes Capacity interests BRA interests ERDRBET
BE it g% ERRR RHER BEs BREEAL
Well Success ] Beneficial owner 851,685,958 - 851,685,958 48.83%
FaA
First Dynamic ] Inferest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEABE
Royal Pacific ! Inferest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEABE
TCCFHL 2 Inferest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEABE
TCCM(PTCIL 2 Trustee - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
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LoNG PosiTIONs (CONTINUED) (M EErE
Number of issued Shares Percentage of
BRTRH the issued share
Deemed capital of the
Direct interests Total Company
Shareholder Notes Capacity interests BRASE interests HADRBET
BE i3 g% ERER B L BEBAL
Mr. Chan 2 Beneficial owner, 5,000,000 851,685,958 856,685,958 49.12%
REE founder and
beneficiary of frust
FaA  EEKIA
REFZHEA
Ng Shuk Fong (“Madam Ng") 2 Spouse and - 856,685,958 856,685,958 49.12%
RAF((REL]) beneficiary of trust
B REFZEA
Alexon Interest of controlled - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
corporation
REEAEE
Mr. Sze 3 Beneficial owner - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
i BN
Lau Yuk Wah (“Madam Lau”) 3 Spouse - 851,685,958 851,685,958 48.83%
AEE(8%L)) [
Frensham Investments 4 Beneficial owner and 83,999,430 851,685,958 935,685,388 53.65%
Limited (“Frensham”) inferest of confrolled
corporation
EHARREEAEE
Pou Yuen Industrial 4 Inferest of confrolled - 935,685,388 935,685,388 53.65%

[Holdings) Limited
(“Pou Yuen")
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corporation
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LonG Posimions (CONTINUED)

Shareholder

KR

Yue Yuen Industrial

Limited

(“Yue Yuen Industrial”)
BTIZERAR(HTIE])

Pou Hing Industrial
Company Limited
(“Pou Hing")

Yue Yuen Industrial

[Holdings) Limited

(“Yue Yuen”)
BLTx(RB)BRAR ((Hr)

Wealthplus Holdings
Limited
("Wealthplus”)

Pou Chen Corporation
(“Pou Chen")
ERIE(£E)ERAF ("))

Shah Capital Management

ESRE

Notes
it

Capacity
g%

Interest of controlled
corporation
REE\EE

Interest of controlled
corporation
REE\EE

Interest of controlled
corporation
REE\EE

Interest of controlled
corporation
REENEE

Interest of controlled
corporation
REE\EE

Beneficial owner

REA

() ERaEE#E
Number of issued Shares
ERITRG
Deemed

Direct interests Total
interests BRASE inferests
B i BER
- 935,685,388 935,685,388
- 935,685,388 935,685,388
- 935,685,388 935,685,388
- 935,685,388 935,685,388
- 935,685,388 935,685,388
239,828,500 - 239,828,500

Percentage of
the issued share

capital of the
Company
ERRFBRT
RERDL

53.65%

53.65%

53.65%

53.65%

53.65%

13.75%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

m

LoNG PosiTioNs (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2009, Well Success was directly interested in
851,685,958 Shares. First Dynamic held more than one-third of the
issued share capital of Well Success. Each of Royal Pacific and
Alexon held more than one-third of the issued share capital of
First Dynamic. Accordingly, each of First Dynamic, Royal Pacific
and Alexon was deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 Shares.

Madam Ng is the wife of Mr. Chan, a director of the Company.
Royal Pacific is wholly-owned by TCCFHL, which in turn is wholly-
owned by TCCM(PTC)L, which is a trustee of a discretionary frust.
Ultimately, Royal Pacific was held by a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Chan and his family members were the discretionary
beneficiaries and Mr. Chan was the founder. As at 31 December
2009, Royal Pacific was deemed to be interested in 851,685,958
Shares (see Note 1), therefore both Mr. Chan and Madam
Ng were deemed to be interested in 851,685,958 Shares.
Furthermore, Mr. Chan was directly interested in 5,000,000
Shares. Accordingly, Madam Ng was deemed to be interested
in a total of 856,685,958 Shares.

Madam Lau is the wife of Mr. Sze, a director of the Company.
As at 31 December 2009, Mr. Sze was interested in the entire
issued share capital of Alexon, therefore he was deemed to
be interested in 851,685,958 Shares (see Note 1). Accordingly,
Madam Lau was deemed to be interested in a total of
851,685,958 Shares.

Frensham was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Yuen which in
turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen Industrial. Yue
Yuen Industrial was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Hing which
in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yue Yuen. Wealthplus, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pou Chen, held over one-third of the
entire issued share capital of Yue Yuen. As at 31 December 2009,
Frensham held more than one-third of the issued share capital
of Well Success and was therefore deemed to be interested in
851,685,958 Shares. In addition, Frensham had a direct interest in
83,999,430 Shares. Accordingly, all of Frensham, Pou Yuen, Yue
Yuen Industrial, Pou Hing, Yue Yuen, Wealthplus and Pou Chen
were or deemed to be interested in 935,685,388 Shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

(2)  SHorr Positions

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2009.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”), an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Exchange (“Listing
Rules”). The Company considers all INEDs are independent.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
largest and top 5 customers were approximately 35% and 89% of the
Group's total sales, respectively.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's 5 largest suppliers were less than 28% of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share
capital of any of the 5 largest customers of the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD73,000 (2008: HKD33,000).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is set up by the board
of Directors of the Company (“Board”) on the basis of the merit,
qualification and competence of the Group's employees.

The emoluments of Directors are decided by the Board, as
authorised by Shareholders at annual general meeting, having
regard fo the operating results of the Company, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was set up in December 2005,
adyvising the Board on the emoluments of Directors and senior
management. The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company fo offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis fo existing
Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2009.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 24 to 29 of
this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ting Chuen
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries “Group”) recognises the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance, aiming at
providing sufficient transparency, quality of disclosure as well as
effective risk control to investors.

The Company has adopted and complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009, only with deviations
from code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election. The
directors of the Company (“Directors”) (including non-executive
Directors) were not appointed for a specific ferm but are subject to
refirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-
Laws”). Each Director is effectively appointed under an average
term of 3 years.

The primary role of the board of Directors of the Company (“Board”)
is to protect and enhance long-term shareholders’ value. It focuses
on the Group's overall strategic policy, monitors performance
and offers proper supervision for effective management. As at 31
December 2009, the Board consisted of 11 Directors (including
the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)), amongst which é are
executive Direcfors and 5 are Non-executive Directors of whom 4
are independent.

The posts of Chairman and Managing Director (being defined as
Chief Executive Officer in the CG Code) are held separately by
Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald before 23
January 2009) and Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and management to the Board. On the other
hand, the Managing Director focuses on managing the day-to-
day operation of the business of the Group. This segregation of roles
ensures the reinforcement of their independence, accountability
and responsibility.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group's business to the
Managing Director and the senior management. While allowing
management with substantial autonomy fo run and to develop the
business, the delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed by the Board.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”)
came from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
bringing in valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Company
has received, from each INEDs, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all INEDs are independent.

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and
advice from company secretary of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists the following
mempbers:

MEMBERS OF THE BoARD

Executive Director

Mr. Chan Ting Chuen (Chairman)

Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony (Deputy Chairman & Managing Director)
Mr. Chang Tsung Yuan (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lu Min

Ms. Chen Fang Mei

Dr. Ho Ting Seng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Li I Nan

Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Mr. Huang Shenglan
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration policy and its structure for Directors
and senior management. The Remunerafion Committee assesses
performance and approves the ferms of service confracts (if any) of
executive Directors.

MEMmBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Feng Lei Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Ho Shing Chak

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package comprises salaries, bonuses
and share incentive scheme. During the year under review,
Remuneration Committee considered that the packages of the
executive Directors were fair and reasonable, taking into account
business performance, market practices and competitive market
conditions. Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and tfime dedicated to the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) was
established with specific written terms of reference (“Terms of
Reference”). The Audit Committee oversees the audit process and
provides an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process and the internal control.

Memgers oF Aupit COMMITTEE

Mr. Ho Shing Chak (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Kar Shing

Mr. Feng Lei Ming

Mr. Li I Nan

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2009, the Audit Committee reviewed with external auditor, internal
auditors and senior management the annual results of the Group
as well as the accounting principles and practices being adopted,
internal control and financial reporting matters. Our Financial
Controller, senior management, internal auditors and the external
auditors attended the meetings to respond to any queries raised by
the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted 11 meetings.
Management provided appropriate and sufficient information
to Directors and Committees members in a fimely manner to
keep them abreast of the latest developments of the Company
fo discharge their responsibilities. The attendance of individual
members of the Board and other Committees meetings during the
financial year ended 31 December 2009 is set out in the table below:

Directors Board
= BEEg
Executive Directors HITES
Chan Ting Chuen BREE) | 10/11
Sze Sun Sun Tony HeFTFT 1/
Chang Tsung Yuan EILV 4/1
Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald 2B (7 2009 4
(resigned on 23 January 2009) 1 A23 HEHE) 0/11
Chan Lu Min EREs 4/11
Chen Fang Mei PR 75 25 (7 2009 4
(appointed on 8 July 2009) 7 A8 HEZT) 1/11
Ho Ting Seng fi] & 1/
Ku Edward Y. BRI AE (72009
(deceased on 30 March 2009) 3 A 30 HEH) 3/11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Li I Nan FE5 4/11
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHITES
Cheng Kar Shing BERAK, 4/11
Feng Lei Ming i 4/1
Ho Shing Chak frI K% 4/11
Huang Shenglan = HFER (702009 4F
(appointed on 8 July 2009) 7 A8 HEZT) 1/11

Minutes of the Board and Committees meetings have been
recorded in sufficient detail. Draft and final versions of minutes of
the Board and Committees are sent to all Directors or Committees
members for comments and records within a reasonable time after
the meefing.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee but shall
regularly review and consider whether such committee is required.
All appointments, resignations and removals of Directors and the
succession plan are subject to the approval of the Board.

Under the Bye-Laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs) must
retire, becoming eligible for re-election at each annual general
meeting. This year, Mr. Ho Shing Chak, Dr. Ho Ting Seng, Mr. Li | Nan
and Mr. Sze Sun Sun Tony shall retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and all being eligible to offer themselves for re-
election. Details of their biography are set out in the circular to
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

On 23 January 2009, Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald resigned from his
offices as Chairman and executive Director. On 30 March 2009, Mr.
Ku Edward Y. passed away. On 8 July 2009, the Board appointed Ms.
Chen Fang Mei and Mr. Huang Shenglan as executive Director and
INED respectively.

As at 31 December 2009, none of the Directors has a service
confract with the Company or any members of the Group that
will not expire or is not determinable by the employer within 1
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, for audit services and
non-audit services for the financial years ended 31 December 2009
and 2008 is as follows:

Nature of services REME
Audit services BT AR
Other services H AR

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the financial year
ended 31 December 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2009 which give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company.

Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.

Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy and application
of accounting, financial and other controls and promoting effective
control in the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the significance of maintaining an effective
fwo-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
management meetfs with research analysts and institutional
investors on an on-going basis and provides them with the
latest and comprehensive information about the corporate
developments of the Group. In addition, the Company utilises its
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) as a channel to provide
updated information in a fimely manner in order to strengthen the
communication with its stakeholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained sufficient public float at over 40%
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.
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Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 119 which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2009, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no ofther purpose. We do not
assume responsibility fowards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the enfity’s infernal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong ¢ 26 March 2010
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AY
REzHKER
BR12A31H 1L F/E
2009 2008
Notes HKD’000 HKD'000
MizF FET FHET
Revenue e 4 1,784,907 2,050,584
Cost of sales HEN A (1,437,838) (1,768,865)
Gross profit E5 347,069 281,719
Otherincome HAbUg A 34,427 38,853
Distribution and selling expenses DI REERY (149,114) (127,843)
Administrative expenses THAX (195,347) (231,266)
Other expenses HibFx (7,430) (3,360)
Net increase (decrease) in fair value KREMENTFEE
of investment properties O ) F8E 57,750 (32,050)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARAR 28 - 13,586
Impairment loss on goodwill PR E R 1R - (57,477)
Gain (Loss) on fair value changes of FEHEREQNTEE
held-for-frading investments “ﬁﬁ’]”ﬁ?(@ﬁ%) 716 (11,998)
Share of results of jointly Bk
controlled entities %ﬁﬁ (58,498) (101,409)
Profit (Loss) before tax BRA AT T (B518) 29,573 (231,245)
Taxation IR 5 (10,785) 1,554
Profit (Loss) for the year FERT (B18) é 18,788 (229,691)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hft#rE Wz (BIx)
Surplus arising on re-classification B BBENEEHE
from prepaid lease payments BIREMEREE
to investment properties 2 B 14,523 -
Deferred tax on surplus arising on B MBENEEHE
re-classification from prepaid lease BIREMEREE
payments to investment properties 2 BEREIRIER IR (2,413) -
Surplus (deficit) arising on MEEMEMEE
revaluation of properties 2Btk (E18) 12,194 (2,605)
Deferred tax (liability) asset arising %%EEEFEF{E
on revaluation of properties REFIIE (BB EE (3.145) 640
Effect of changes in tax rates THBEE’JE’@ - 253
Fair value gain (loss) on Tﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ%&éﬁ NS
available-for-sale investments BEE M (EE) 6,412 (6,899)
Re-classification adjustment to profit FHOBEHEAH
or loss upon disposal of HERERIBS
available-for-sale investments EOEEE:S (2) -
Exchange differences arising on TEINETEFEE R
translation of foreign operations EHTEER (2,968) 27,945
Share of other comprehensive income IEH’E%'JEEEE%
of jointly controlled entities Fa 5,320 (3,108)
Other comprehensive income FAREMERE W
for the year (net of tax) (BrFi1& 558) 29,921 16,226
Total comprehensive income EEEl g
and expense for the year Eﬁ?i%@%ﬁ 48,709 (213,465)




Profit (Loss) for the year aftributable to:

Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Total comprehensive income
and expense attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings (Loss) per share
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

Notes
Mt

IR (B1R)
RATEA A
DB R S

FEEAR A W M
P AeE
EA/NCIL/ S DN
DR R A

AN (BR)
BEUR R 8 B8 () 9

mERHRER

BHE12H318 1L FEZ
2009 2008
HKD’'000 HKD’000
FH&xT FHET
19,008 (226,508)
(220) (3,183)
18,788 (229,691)
48,920 (210,926)
(211) (2.539)
48,709 (213,465)
1.09 (12.99)

w
w
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R12H31H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid lease payments

Interests in jointly controlled entities
Advance to jointly controlled entfities
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assefs

Tax recoverable

Club debentures

Current assets

Inventories

Amounts due from jointly
confrolled entifies

Trade and other receivables

Prepaid lease payments

Held-for-frading investments

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities

Tax payable

Net current assets

FERBEE

ME - BN RE
REME
fETTf E50R
R B B i o
BT HEIEHIEE
Tﬁﬁ%&é
EERIREE
JEEIRIA
GES

mBERE

FE

FEUR A FEH E g
IR

B 5 RAM KRR

TEEERE

FIFEEKREA
RITHEBRERE

VipEE=I=t

%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%
e RS E R
IR
FERBEIR

mBEEFE

mEMBRRE

Notes

iz

10
11
12
16
16
17
23

18

16
19
12
20
21

22

16

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TR
242,532 282,741
331,040 112,450
38,604 50,203
56,778 78,272
171,110 127,749
60,011 54,366
13,127 10,085
17,214 9.714
2,003 2,003
932,419 727,583
171,254 269,148
25,664 50,692
217,808 459,061
1,050 1,301
321 4,055
399,184 280,963
815,281 1,065,220
311,305 395,027
17,650 28,006
54,969 55,641
383,924 478,674
431,357 586,546




mERBRRE

R12H31H

2009 2008

Notes HKD'000 HKD'000

Hiat FBT FET

Total assets less current liabilities EELERLBDARG 1,363,776 1,314,129
Non-current liabilities IFRBBE

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE 23 28,303 9,925

Net Assets BEFE 1,335,473 1,304,204
Capital and reserves BEAS M

Share capital &N 24 436,011 436,011

Share premium and reserves 0@ (B &iFE 866,842 835,362

Equity atfributable to owners RATREBA

of the Company FEIEER 1,302,853 1,271,373

Minority interests DR R R 32,620 32,831

1,335,473 1,304,204

w
(6]

HNEREFNIENTBRRIBAR
RIZEE®MN 20109 3 A 26 Bt X #
T - W TIEFRERRE

The financial statements on pages 32 to 119 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company on 26
March 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Ting Chuen SZE Sun Sun Tony
BREE)I| MR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R BR

A FE2009412 531 H 1FF/E

For the year ended 31 December 2009

THE GROUP
At 1 January 2008

Loss for the year

Fifect of change in fox rofe
Deficit arising on
revaluation of properties
Deferred fox asset arising on
revaluation of properties
Fair velue loss on
available-for-scle investments
Exchange differences arising on franslation
of foreign operafions
Share of other comprehensive income of
jointly confrolled enfifies

Other comprehensive income and
expense for the year

Tofal comprehensive income and
expense for the year

Lapse of share opfions
Dividends paid (Note 8)

At 31 December 2008

K&H
RN08E1A1A

ERER

PEERNTE
NEEREMEL
HER
NEEREMEL
WETHRRE
THEEREY
DTEERE
EAEBAELH
ENfEER
[ERREEE
Refaks

EREbER
YERRER
EREFAlER
AER
FiEhE
ENRE )

H208%124318

Atfributable fo owners of the Company

ADTRERAARE
Properties Investments Share ~ Accumu-
Share revaluation revaluation Translafion  options lated Minority
Share  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve profits interests

capital Rt MEER  REER EX  ERE git Tol  HERR Total
e & e e R Al B &3t Bi &3t
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'OO0  HKD'000  HKD'0O0  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
Thn TR TR TEr TR TR TEr TR TEr TEn
436011 364638 15477 943 36708 15368 691525 1500668 35370 1.556038
- - - - - - (26508)  (226508) (3183 (29.691)

- - 233 - - - - 253 - 253

- - (2,605 - - - - [2609) - [2609)

- - 640 - - - - 640 - 640

- - - (6,899 - - - 6899) - 6899)

- - 901 - 26400 - -7 TR

- - - - 3.083) 25) - 3.108) - (3108)

- - [81) 6899 1317 25) - 15582 b 1626

- - [81) 6899 1317 (25 (26508) (210928]  (2539) (213469

- - - - - (1.206) 1206 - - -

- - - - - - (B39 (38369) - (339
436011 364638 14,666 (595¢) 60,023 14137 37854 121373 32831 1304204




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &r& Bz BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #tZE20094 124318 1FF/Z

Attributable fo owners of the Company

RAAEEREARE
Properties Investments Share ~ Accumu-
Share revaluation revaluation Translafion  options lated Minority
Share  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve reserve profits interests

capital Bt MEER  REER EX  BRE 2it Toldl  YEBR Total
R &E fife fif fif fi il 3 B @it
HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TR TR TEr  TRn  TEn TR TR TEr TEn TERm

Profitfor the year EEET - - - - - - 19008 19,008 (200 18788
Surplus arising on re-classfication from prepaid EF A ER T ESEA

lease payments to investment properies  RANEMEL2BS - - W - - - - 145 - 5
Deferred fox on suplus onre-clossificafion ~ EFPERMEESEA

from prepaid lease payments REMEEL RSN

foinvestment properfies EEHE - - ) - - - - ) - )
Surplus arising on revaluation of properfies  MEEFEEL B - - 1219 - - - - 1219 - 1219
Deferred fox liabilty arising on VLT

revaluation of properties ELiEaE - - (3 - - - - () - (3
Fair value goin on EHERE

avalloble-forsale invesiments ATREEM - - - - - - - 44
Re-classfication adjustment fo profitorloss — Ef AEHET

upon disposal of available-for-sale HERER

nvestments e - - - (2) - - - ) - @
Eichange differences arising on frandafion S5 ERHELH

of foreign operations EXfEEE - - - - - - @m 9 (298)
Share of other comprehensive income of {5 FiASIEE

jointly confrolled entities Afptraka - - - -5 - - 530 - 530

Other comprehensive income and expense  £EE {4

forthe year WARER - - 2115 6,410 2,343 - - 2912 9 209
Totol comprehensive income and expense  EEGARA

for the year REx4E - - 215 6,410 2,343 - 19,008 48920 (1) 48,709
Lapse of share opfions BREEN - - - - - () - - -

Dividends peid Nofes) BARE (i) - - - - - - (M) (1740) (17,440)

At 31 December 2009 R00E12A318 436011 364638 35828 454 42,308 - 403559 1302853 32620 1,335473

w
N
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows G5 R & RER

For the year ended 31 December #ZE12H31H1FFEF

2009 2008
Notes HKD'000 HKD'000
Vifs3 Fax TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETE
Profit (loss) before tax BRI (&518) 29,573 (231,245)
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FIEHA (10,126) (14,077)
Impairment loss on goodwil HERERE - 57,477
Share of results of jointly controlled entities FRREHEEEE 58,498 101,409
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERSERE 41,346 40,354
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNRER AR S 1,173 1,301
Loss (Gain) on disposal of property, HENE - HERS
plant and equipment B8 () 3,592 (66)
Gain on disposal of investment property HEREMELE (30) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHHERE
investments ez (2 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNYNE 28 - (13,586)
(Increase) Decrease in fair value BEMFATERE
of investment properties (Em)md (57,750) 32,050
Reversal of allowance for bad REREE
and doubtful debts ] (440) (2.850)
Allowance for inventories, net FEEEFE 8,498 2,114
Operating cash flow before movements in HEESEA
working capital MIRERET 74,332 (27,119)
Decrease in inventories T /DE’J\ 89,396 22,447
Decrease (Increase) in amounts EHERTRE
due from jointly controlled entities /ﬂ/ (i%?ﬁl]) 25,028 (17,982)
Decrease (Increase) in frade and other receivables &5 & 2t YR Z0RA (3€1n) 231,474 (88,929
Decrease in held-for-frading investments FEEERERD 3,734 1,373
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMENETRD (84.697) (32,744)
Cash generated from (used in) operations (AR RELZEBHRE 339,267 (142,954)
Purchase of tax reserve certificates BERE (7,500) (9.714)
Overseas tax paid EAREIMIIR (1.851) (3.079)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REBBNER 164 377
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (R K& S&EB HE S B4 330,082 (155,370)




INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment properties
Investment in jointly controlled entities
Advance to ajointly controlled entfity
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Dividends received from a jointly controlled entity
Interests received
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of an investment property
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Increase in available-for-sale investments
Loan to ajointly controlled entity
Increase in prepaid lease payments
Decrease in structured deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
(Repayment to) advance from
jointly controlled entities
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BROUGHT FORWARD

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD,
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH

REE
RERADE
HAEZHERRE
AT HAZNER
RENE  BERRE
BYHREERRS
EHHE
HEMTB A AR
HEME  BER
R
HE—RENENRE
HERHEERE
iolh6a
AR EEREEM
BT ARENERE
ENRERREM
BREERERD
RRREEDRSFE
BEEE
ERKRE
(B EHE
HEEHEE
RARBEEBR SRR
RERRLEEY
Bmed) FE

REARERALS
Bt
HEERBENTE

HERSRRESENLR
HRTHEBRRS

Notes
it

28

n -\éiﬁﬁﬁié‘%

BHE12/31HILFE
2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TATL
(117,027) (87.222)
(53,625) -
(43,361) (46,473)
(19,249) (51.329)
21,941 19,843
10,126 14,077
9,000 96,000
5,751 1,616
2,530 -
767 -
- (38,180)
- (34713)
- (1,944)
- 62,240
(183,147) (66,085)
(17,440) (38,369
(10,356) 19,214
(27.796) (19.155)
119,139 (240,610)
280,963 519,494
(918) 2,079
399,184 280,963

w
~O
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GENERAL

Symphony Holdings Limited (“Symphony” or “Company”,
tfogether with its subsidiaries “Group”) was incorporafed in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Exchange”). The address of the registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company is at the
10th Floor of Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Company is United States
dollars (“USD"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") for the convenience
of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”), as the
Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
and tfrading of footwear, frading, retailing and distribution
of licensed products, property investment and investments
holding. The principal actfivities of ifs principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 36.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs™)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
("new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 &1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

— AR

MEEEAERAFA(HE] XD
Al EREMNBARSBEIAEE])
RERETMRIAEREEREAR
A HIRO R EEME XS AER AR
([BERPT)) E75 o RARIFEMPFEERR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda » HEXZ&
¥ AEAILARBESI0RBENE
1018 o

AREWEREE RETL(ERT]) - &
RAERBREBLD  RAEARFR
RIRBRRD  ARAMBRENBT
(Ix]) 25 -

AEENTREFRAERERRERE
5 BRERES TERDE UXE
BRERKEZER  TEMBRANER
EEEENHIFES6

R REBITERYR
BEEN(EEBUBRSEE
U

REE AEECEMBUTHTERSR

Em@@((?%ﬁfﬁﬂi"eﬁ A FTRT
MEIERTER - BRI AREE ([HTR
RIETEBIB|MEER ) -

~

BEGHENZ 1% HBRERNZ

BTREEHEAE LY BEEEL

(2007 &4&3T)

BEGRERE 2% PEESMIAR
pARHACHES) BEREENEM
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Condifions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about

Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
in relation to the amendment fo
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

AR RS

A BERMBR

EEA(HFEMBHREED )

(&)

BBUHHRELER
EAN TS s
HRIF 275 (BRTAK)

BBUHHRELER
F2% (BT K)

BBHHHRELER
ENEAC TR

BBYUHRELRE S

BB (ARYBRE
2EZEg)-3AE
FoRREEGH
ERIF 395 (BFTA)

BB (ERIHR
2EZEE)-2
F13%;

*
[=]
#

f

B (ARYBRE
REZEE)-2E
F15%

BB (ARYBRE
REZAY)
-REE16%

BB (ARYBRE
REZAY)
-REBE 18

BBUTHHRELER
(B7T%)

BBUBHRELER
(fB7T%)

RIBAT - #R
EHERSHE
RAEMREMA

FR R Rt

TRIA
e

fi

BAITETR

RPBHAE

H2EEDHE

BINKHE
Eapalievetd

BERPEBEE

142008 B0 19 F B Bt
RSN 2ok
FRI2009F7 A1 H
EVX: Ll <ok
HRLRNEE
FIBREER
FSR2E

12009810 9B B 7
HERR 2B
BEEEGHER
F39REB0R 2 EF]
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

New AnD Revisep HKFRSs
AFFECTING PRESENTATION AND DiscLOSURE ONLY

HKAS 1 (Reviseo 2007)
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has infroduced terminology changes
(including revised fitles for the financial statements) and
changes in the format and content of the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 8 OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a re-
designation of the Group's reportable segments (see Note 4).

IMPROVING DiscLosures ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Amenbments To HKFRS 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relafion to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group has
not provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the fransitional provision set
out in the amendments. The amendments also expand and
amend the disclosures required in relation to liquidity risk.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment fo HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

RAFITRZEBITERBTHK
BREEN(EEBUBREE

] 1) (&)

B TR AGN - BRAFTR] R B TR A R
BEEAGES RN EERITRBEE
SHERNRAMBBRREREATE -

EHZINFTARBKEBRSENHNTR
RIETT BB IR E XA

BB ERTERE 155 (2007 BIE5T) B %
BRHZ5

B G AERIE 198 (2007 &£1&5T) B 3
A—ZHEFREBEE (BEMBHRERE
BET)  REAMBHREIEATH

44
5

EBMBREERNFESHREESE

EAMBREEAESR A —REE
% BEAEMAREHBEFEL (R
CEDE

TRTAZREIGE
(BT B HREENFE7THRERTA | I15F)

BERPBMELRNE 7 R AT REAR
APEEAEZESRTASHEBATE
B EZEERTE - AEEILEEZ
ERTAIRE 2 BEEGX - HEEX
H) 3 58 2 SRR L BBUR o ULIEFT AR TR
BAREXNEBERDECRABRZTRER

E e
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements!

Classification of Righfs Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items!

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters®

Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments’

Prepayments of a Minimum

Funding Requirement?

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners!

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®

PRANETRT I R 4&

( = )

BBEERE 24T
(BE7T)

BBEERE TR
(BE7T)

BBEERE32R
(B7T%)

BBEERE39R
(B7T%)

BRYBREERE 5
(B7T%)

BRYBREERE 5
(B7T%)

BBUHRERRE 25
(B7T%)

BAMBREEANE IR
(#&1&3 T)

BRUBRELRE IR

B (ERBHRERE
Z89)-2EF 4R

£5] BB MR
EEA(HFEMBHREED )

BEALZRE

FRRBUMBRER

HEAE

AEMRREIAR"

BRRHENE

e

BRESEENBRE

ERE7 Rz RE

HEBET AR

EE

SENRHEE R
HERFRNZH®

FHAH

TRIA’
HEEEEKZ
A
AEEADIKSE
HedE

AEATAMESR
BE°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 Bt 1§ iR &k st

(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will
affect the accounting freatment for changes in the Group's

ownership interest in a subsidiary.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

R REBITERMK
SRA(TEEBYBREE
A1) (%)

! A 200947 A1 BA RGO FER
AR

2 BRI Ty 20097 A1 B 20104 1
A1 8B (ER) A% FEHE
E04

3 HR2010F 1 A1 B A HAMTERE
A

4 H2010F2 A1 Bl A FIAMTEHE
A

s H2010F7 A1 B A HAMTER
A

¢ H2011F1 A1 BB TER
A

7 MR2013F 1 A1 BeABHAMTER
A

RMEBMBMEEE 3R (EERDA
ATRERZ AR B /2010481 A1 HalbAE
FEENEBEHEHA 20 hE
BEEERE 275 (BERT) BEFER
SER-HEARSEEaANEE S
SHEEIETTE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” infroduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and will be effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The standard requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instfruments: Recognition and Measurement” to be measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows; and (i) have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured aft fair value. The application
of HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and measurement of
the Group’s financial assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements fo HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will
be effective from 1 January 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, leases were
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the
extent to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The application
of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect the classification
and measurement of the Group’s leasehold land.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anficipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial insfruments, which are measured atf revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. In additfion,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BAsis oF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities confrolled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All infra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidafion.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group excepft to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BusiNEss COMBINATIONS

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interests in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

GoobwiLL
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at

cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

GoobWwiLL (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
fo which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss for goodwill is notf reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint confrol over those policies.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The results and assetfs and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interests in that associate (which include any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising ifs share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identified assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity tfransacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the interests of
the Group in the relevant associate.

JOINT VENTURES

Jointly Confrolled Entities

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over

the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
Jointly Controlled Entities (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in jointly controlled entities are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group's share of losses of
a jointly conftrolled entity equals or exceeds its interests in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substances, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising ifs share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
assessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of
the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the jointly controlled entity.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties let under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the relevant lease.

PrOPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Freehold land is
stated at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of freehold
land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised as an expense in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit
or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an
asset is recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retrement of a revalued asset, the aftributable revaluation
surplus is tfransferred to accumulated profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

ProPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the confinued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction. Starting from
1 January 2009, investment properties under construction are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Any
difference between the fair value of the investment properties
under construction and their carrying amounts is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognifion of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership fo the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as expense on d
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incenfive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

LEASING (CONTINUED)
Leasehold Land and Building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire confract is generally treated as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for
as operating leases and amortised over the lease term on
a straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model.

FOReIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, fransactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-franslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
re-franslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

Exchange differences arising on the seftlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and will be re-classified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange differences arising on the refranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(translation reserve).

ReTIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
fax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
fo the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

CuLus DEBENTURES

Club debentures are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL AsSETS

The Group's financial assets are classified info one of the 3
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTIPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two sub-categories, including

financial assets held-for-trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL AsSETs (CONTINUED)

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held-for-tfrading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
arecent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-tfrading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon inifial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from re-measurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividends
or interests earned on the financial assefs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL AsSETs (CONTINUED)
Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including non-current advance to a jointly
controlled entity, shareholder’s loan to a jointly controlled
entity, amounts due from jointly controlled entities, frade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which fime, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is re-
classified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
fo and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL AsSETs (CONTINUED)
Impairment of Financial Assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered fo be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assefs carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference befween
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL AsSETs (CONTINUED)
Impairment of Financial Assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of tfrade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investments revaluation reserve. For
available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
FINANCIAL LiaBILITIES AND EQuiTY

Financial liabilities and equity instfruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contfractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
amounts due to jointly controlled entities) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value
less tfransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
fransferred and the Group has fransferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On de-
recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Share Options Granted to Employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited, i.e. share options lapse as a result of resignation of
employees after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

Share Options Granted to Consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognised as expenses with corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserves), when the counterparties
render services, unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT LOsSES OF TANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN
GOODWILL (SEE THE ACCOUNTING POLICY IN RESPECT OF GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its fangible and infangible assets to
determine whether there is any indications that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is freated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

FESFEE

(&)

EREERBBUINEREE ZRE
BR(REXEHRBHENETER)

RABREMR  AEERSEEL RE
MEEMKREE IATZEEERR
BEBEIR - B EAREBREIR
HE - AEEGFHZEENTEKE
B #FAREREBR(EE) 22K -
BRubPASN - BAER A6 A F O ETY
BEGNEBFREAPRBREGRE
FOETTRERF - MiEst —EEMATIR
EEEENEREER ZEEMRD
EgRASEREATREERE - REEE
AHRER AR - RIFABEEERE
S REAIAEM®BEER - BHEBESR
ARZERIA B R EAR -

HEREBERARERE ZEENKRE
ERESEEEREEN A KRER
HZIE MR REE N R RZEER B
2 7 R B HERROR (B B 18 A B9 BR
B BBREBREERER DK
A BRIFEBEEREMERNAEGEE
FIRR - HEBOREREAKZERIAE
CEREVN:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “"Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of infernal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources
fo segments and to assess their performance. In confrast,
the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”)
requires an entity to identify 2 sets of segment (business and
geographical) using a risks and returns approach. In the
past, the Group's primary reporting format was geographical
segments by location of customers, irrespective of the
origins of goods. The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted
in a re-designation of the Group's reportable segments as
compared with the primary reportable segments determined
in accordance with HKAS 14.

In prior year, primary segment information was analysed on
the basis of geographical markets based on the location of
customers that the Group's goods were shipped to, i.e. United
States of America, Canada, Europe, Asia, Australia and others.
However, information reported to the chief operating decision
maker, being the managing director of the Company, for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment
focus more specifically on the operation efficiency by each
operation unit, i.e. footwear manufacturing, retailing and
sourcing and property investment. Financial information on
segment results and segment assets are regularly provided
to chief operating decision maker while no information
of segment liabilities is provided. The Group’s reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

1. Footwear manufacturing;

2. Retailing and sourcing — retailing and provision of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and
accessories; and

3. Property Investment.

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
Amounts reported for the prior year have been restated
fo reflect the change on basis of presentation of segment
information under HKFRS 8.

2 BER

REBBRME2009F 1 A1 BRBER
WEBMBRELAESRKIEEDA]
ERUBRELNESRERKLLE DA
SENBREHAEEZERERED
BoRAELERSERTIZS A

B MR - EpTERFBEGTERE 14
SEIDEmE] - BIZRkURER KB -
NERBH [MEEEBAB2HOAEH
BEE I ERREIARBMAS B (X5
i) o B - REENEZRELR
REEPREMOBRSE - THwER
R - LR BB G ERFE 4R ER
MERREDE  HNBBUBREE
AIFE 8 REBBAKEN A RE D HERN
TERL

RBEFE  2HBERIREASEE
mBER PN (BIEE - MEX -
BUM ~ G2 RN R E At (&) it (R
5 REEMERDIN - A BIAE
RARRAERRMER T ETELER
FENARREFREE)EHAUES
NEfgESEMN  NEEE TEHA
RERMERE - XA HMREE
DEHOPBEHNEERMEELERE
ERH L TEFEAESHEN - B
b REBMBHRELYFEFEME - K
SEARED AT -

1. HEEEE:

2. ZTEERE - BMRE - KRE
NEHZEL AERHRE R
K

3. MERKE-
B LR HNEHREN TR - BEE

BEEMBMELNESR - HATFE
MBUEMEH B IR -

o~
~N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

SEGMENT REVENUE AND REsuLTs

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2009

REVENUE
External sales

Segment profit (loss)

Corporate income:
Interest income
Others
Central administrative costs
Share of results of jointly controlled entities

Profit before tax

For the year ended 31 December 2008

REVENUE
External sales

Segment profit (loss)

Corporate income:
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Interest income
Others
Central administrative costs
Impairment loss on goodwil
Share of resulfs of jointly confrolled entfifies

Loss before tax

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

LES
HHMHE

DN (BH)

Afts
PRITHELA
BHAZHERERE
BB AT A

o B (BR)

DEEA
HERBLARR
MBHA
Hfts

RRITHAA

BERERE

BHRZHEREEE

BHAEE

4. DEHEH(HE)
2 EEEER A

TREJAEENZ A HRED AL HEE
REBEDHT -

BZE2009F12A31HLLFE

Footwear Retailing and Property
manufacturing sourcing  investiment Consolidated
BERE TERRE NERE EE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TR TR TR

1,701,530 77,178 6,199 1,784,907

113,461 (38,953) 63,515 138,023

10,126

49

(60,574)
(58,498)

29,573

HZE2008F 12 A31HILEE

Footwear Retailing and Property
manufacturing sourcing  investment  Consolidated
BEERE TERRE nERE ma
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FiEn FiEn ARG TR

1,946,322 100,115 4,147 2,050,584

22,737 (28,264) (28,708) (34,235)

13,586

14077

213

(66,000)

(57,477)
(101,409)

231,245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the accounting policies of the Group described in
Note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss) earned
or incurred by each segment without allocation of interest
income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, other income, central
administrative costs, impairment loss on goodwill and share of
results of jointly controlled entfities. This is the measure reported
fo the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable
segment:

Segment assets

Footwear manufacturing HERGE
Retailing and sourcing TE MR
Property investment MEKRE
Total segment assets DEVEERE
Unallocated ROBC
Consolidated assets FEEE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
advance to jointly controlled entities, interests in jointly
confrolled entities, available-for-sale investments, deferred tax
assets, tax recoverable, club debentures, amounts due from
jointly controlled entities, held-for-trading investments and
bank balances and cash.

7 ERE ()
2 EEEER A (F)

FERED BN S B R AR B NS
PrREe quftﬁZﬁ*EH o o #B A (B 1R)
TIRERBESBRIENSBA - HE
BB AR AR - B - FRITHK
A ABREBERGEARZEHERE
BRTESRARENRTN (BE) - 2
BIZEERRENMEMUDEER
NERIFEERR -

ABRE
BARE S BOREMAEA O -
P HEE

2009 2008

HKD’000 HKD'000

FHT T

588,719 929,981

44,952 49,577

368,617 195,346

1,002,288 1,174,904

745,412 617,899

1,747,700 1,792,803

RUEESBRBEN D HBEOEER

BBRT EHEE  HAREHE
B —H’Eiﬁ%&é ﬁkt’tﬁlﬁ%f
E-ERTIE - gRES - BUH
B B ROR - #ﬂ’Ef‘E‘lE&éfﬂfEﬁ ﬁéf‘
EBReH MABREGRAIMENHD
i -
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REFEERRBRHHWE

REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its REAETZEREBRBOAEB RS DT

N
(@)

major products and services: R
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
T FET
Footwear manufacturing HERE 1,701,530 1,946,322
Retailing and sourcing TE R 77,178 100,115
Property investment YIZIRE 6,199 4,147

Total revenue from major REFEEMR

products and services TG e B 1,784,907 2,050,584

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

hEE R

AEEBINBEPHEEREIERSE
EERNREEMEBEDBOFBHT -

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about its non-current assets by geographical location of the

symphony holdings limited 2009 annual report

assets are detailed below:

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current
assets located

BINREF f i FREBEEFER
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKD’'000 HKD'0O00 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHxT FHET FHER FHET

The People’s Republic I AR
of China (“PRC") (THE]) 66,231 97,650 354,235 247,592
Taiwan =) 10,947 2,465 9,641 9,643
Hong Kong i 6,199 4,147 233,993 172,389
United States of America EH 899,489 924,335 - -
Canada mEx 72,019 93,572 - -
Other European Countries EABUMBEIR 501,924 646,941 - -
Vietnam fafea) - - 14,307 15,770
Other Asian Countries EHAh MBI R 174,673 148,393 - -
Others Hih 53,425 133,081 - -
1,784,907 2,050,584 612,176 445,394

ERAERARS - BESEIMER
EIEREM R BRI 27 o

The geographical information for the revenue attributed to
each foreign country is not available and the cost to develop
it would be excessive.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments, advance to
jointly controlled entities, interests in jointly controlled entities,
deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and club debentures of
which the Group considered it is impracticable to decide the
location of assets.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales, included in footwear
manufacturing segment of the Group, all of which are as
follows:

Customer A EERH
Customer B BEEZ
Customer C BEEA
Customer D BEET

! Not applicable as the corresponding revenue did not contribute
over 10% of the total sales of the Group.

TAXATION
Current tax: INEAFRIR ¢
Hong Kong BB
Current year REF
(Over)under provision BEFE
in prior years (fB%E) N RBE
Other jurisdictions HAib RDEARE
Current year RER
Under(over) provision BEFEE
in prior years T2 GEBEE) B
Deferred tax (Note 23): IRIERT IR (3£ 23) -
Current year AEE
Taxation attributable to the AR REME AR

Company and its subsidiaries JEAETTA

7 EEFR ()
HEER ()

Biet : R AEERRARRTE TFIEENF
i HIERBDEETBREESMTA -
BRTHRZGER  KFAZGEEE
@ BREREEE  REVERSAE

FEEFER
PIBEFEHAEERI0%ALNEP I

D(BEEEAEEERRED ) NET
LU

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TET
626,196 628,918
494,774 318,820
217,464 212,620
= 258,940

! MR AL REEER TR A RERE
HEEW10% > WAEA -

BiE

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
66 37
(108) 412
884 4,670
165 (307)
1,007 4,812
9,778 (6,366)
10,785 (1,554)

~N
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Hone Kone Tax

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax
rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years of 2008
and 2009.

In March 2008, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD") issued
protective profits tax assessments notice, for an aggregate
additional tax of HKD15,400,000, relating to the year of
assessment of 2001/2002, that is, for the financial year ended
31 December 2001, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. The Group had lodged objections with
IRD against the protective assessments. IRD agreed to hold
over the tax claimed subject to the subsidiaries’ purchase of
tax reserve certificates (“TRCs”) of HKD9,714,000 which was
included in tax recoverable as at 31 December 2008 and
2009.

In March 2009, IRD further issued protective profits fax
assessmenfts notfice, for an aggregate additional tax of
HKD27,700,000, relating to the year of assessment of
2002/2003, that is, for the financial year ended 31 December
2002, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group had lodged objections with IRD against
the protective assessments. IRD agreed to hold over the
fax claimed subject to the subsidiaries’ purchase of TRCs of
HKD7,500,000 which was included in tax recoverable as at 31
December 2009.

In January 2010, IRD issued another protective profits
fax assessments notice, for an aggregate additional tax
of HKD35,500,000, relating to the year of assessment of
2003/2004, that is, for the financial year ended 31 December
2003, against certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Company.
The Group had lodged objections with IRD against the
protective assessmenfts. IRD agreed to hold over the tax
claimed subject to the subsidiaries’ purchase of TRCs of
HKD6,000,000.

mEMBRRIE

BBBIE

A2008F6A26H » BBV XL BB
20084 U A {& 5] - B 2008,2009 =
BEER  CEMNEHEHRI7.5%RAE
16.5% ° At - 2008 4F 2. 2009 F #) & 75
FIBH TR FE NG R E FR X
16.5%5 5 °

R2008F3A M BRIBRER I
BH—HREUMSHIMNBNZ
EEAARRET2EHBEMERFR
2001/20024F & - # £2001 12 A 31
B BFENBSE TR SRR
% #4975 15,400,000/87C - NEEE L
REUHIFHAFRERRERY - HER
REESIBKNE2EFT - EZSW
BAREEE9,714,000 BT ERS
([#Bi% ) - B ZE20084 22009412 A
1AL FEREERFIEFR AR -

R2009F3H - MBHEEH —HRIE
HHREHARBME  FEARRAET
2 & WA M B A 752 2002/2003 F & -
B E 200212 731 H IEMBFEHH
bz - BRI AR FE A /3 27,700,000
BT o RNEEE s RE MR BB
RRERE - BBRBRE&EMMER
ME2ENFR EXSHBARABE
7,500,000 BITHFERS L EREZE
2009 F12A31 HIEFEERBIEHR A
BE o

20101 A - HMIEHEHS —MHIRE
MHEHIRBNE  EBEARQRET
2 BB E A 7R 20032004 FE
B#E ZE 20034 12 531 B BB EE T
T atAx - BBONFERE 4 EE4Y A 35,500,000
BT AEEDRZREMTHABE
PRRERY - HIEHE B EHTEKY
2HBF RSHBRARABRESE
6,000,000 & TTHIRETL 5 o



Hong Kong Tax (conTiNuED)

Directors believe that no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
in respect of the above mentioned profective assessments
is necessary. In addition, the inquiries from IRD are still at
fact-finding stage and IRD has not yet expressed any formal
opinion on the potential tax liability, if any. The potential tax
liability, if any, cannot be readily ascertained af this stage.

PRC Tax

The tax statuses for certain subsidiaries of the Group operating
in PRC, including Zhongshan Jingmei Footwear Industry
& Commerce Co. Ltd. RILBEEEBR DT (“ZThongshan
Jingmei”), Fuging Grand Galatica Footwear Co. Ltd. @& Z&E X
HHEHMRAT (“Fuqing Grand Galatica”) and Zhongshan Huali
Footwear Industry & Commerce Co Ltd. FILERITEER DT
(“Zhongshan Huali"), are as follows:

. Zhongshan Jingmei and Zhongshan Huali enjoyed
the preferential tax rate of 12.5% (being 50% of the
applicable tax rate of 25%) for the years from 2008 to
2010. Thereafter, the tax rate will increase to 25% from
the year 2011 onwards;

o Fuging Grand Galatfica enjoyed the preferential tax
freatment of 9% (being 50% of the applicable tax rate of
18%) for the year 2008 and that of 10% (being 50% of the
applicable tax rate of 20%) for the year 2009. Thereafter,
the fax rate will step up to 22%, 24% and 25% for the years
2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively.

For other PRC subsidiaries, the applicable tax rate was 25%
during the year.

e MBHRRRE

BB (F)

ESHEASEERAY RN REET
MATENETETEE - S5 BB
BOERDERERE  WBERBALRE
REMBERBEB(RWA)MEXE
R HERER ZEERBRE(EHE)
I R BETERR ©

HhEIB A

AEEETRPRBEEENHBRARZH
BRR BEFPLUEXEELEFRAF
(THWExED  BBEEAEEERAA
(TBAEBRKRD RPUENEERRAA
(THRWER DT :

. B 20084 ZE20104F - # [l # =
RAILENZERBEESFE - B
R 7312.5% (B BT 8 A 7 % 25% HY
50%) + 12011 i - BRI
£225% N

. M2008% - BIBEEAZHEHBE
BB WERI%(EIFEBB
E18%#)50%)  MH 2009 F -+ B
B 2 10% (BN PR iE A3 Bt % 20% &Y
50%) ¢ h1& - 20104 ~ 2011 FF 2
2012 2 B &5 B L7 =22%
24% N 25% ©

FrA - E b B B 6 PR B
F25% o

~N
w
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VIiEtNAm TAX

Stateway Vietham Footwear Co. Ltd (“Stateway Vietnam”)
was entifled to exemption from enterprise income tax for 4
years starting with the first profit-making year. For the following
9 years, Stateway Vietham would be entitled to further tax
preferential tax freatment in the form of 50.0% reduction in the
applicable tax rate in Vietnam. Stateway Vietnam has not yet
commenced its tax exemption period due fo its loss position
in 2008 and 2009. The tax exemption period is deemed to
commence from 2010 onwards.

Continuance Vietnam Footwear Co. Ltd. (“Continuance
Vietnam”) was entitled to exemption from entferprise income
tax for 2 years starfing with the first profit-making year. For the
following 3 years, Continuance Vietnham would be entitled
fo further tax preferential tax treatment in the form of 50.0%
reduction in the applicable tax rate in Vietnam. Continuance
Vietnam has not yet commenced its tax exemption period
due fo its loss position in 2008 and 2009. The tax exemption
period is deemed to commence from 2010 onwards.

mEMBRRIE

HRBIR

HMEARCEAERAR((HEAR] A
BESSRNFERGEAIFHBRE
ERRIF BEARSUZTEESR
BFE - AR R M E R ATE BN R
B9 50% = H 70 HL R FB 7 2008 F K 2009
FHURBHERN - WD ARMBTEE
MBEHEEN  BANRGHeFHER
2010 F A -

HMERFEXARAR((HUERE A
BEZSRNFERGE2EHBHRE
ERERIF BHEARABIZAERED
BFE - AR R M E R AT AR R
B 50% o ER 7 ik B2 S 5% 2008 4F K2 2009
FHRBEHERFN - WIDARMBTEE
HBEHEFEN  BANRGHeFHER
2010 F R4 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5. HIE(HE)
OTHERS Hith

Hib eDR@ IS EERRIE - JIRERE
AEBEMIRITREE

Taxation arising in ofher jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

~N
(6}

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to profit (loss) FEMNALGE 2EWRKXPRTA
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive F(EE) HRMT -
income as follows:
2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
FEr THET
Profit (Loss) before tax BREBATET] (B518) 29,573 (231,245)
Tox at Hong Kong Profits Tox rate of 16.5% &&EFIGHHE16.5%:1E 4,880 (38,155)
Tax effect of expenses not TEMAHENFRY
deductible for tax purpose ZHBEE 524 13,661
Tax effect of income not BARBABA
taxable for tax purpose Z?)%?T%E” 2 (2,198) (5.082)
Tax effect of share of results REEHEEEE
of jointly controlled entities ZW%E/’ 9,652 16,732
Underprovision in respect of prior years — BEFE R EE 57 105
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K %R?ESTEZW%?L 7,685 11,409
Effect of tax exemptions granted EYETHBA
to cerfain subsidiaries ZW%%’&?&?/ £ (10,873) (2.237)
Income tax on concessionary rate BEBRETHFRED (903) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ﬁ’\ﬁfﬁﬂii[ﬁ“‘%ﬁﬁﬁ‘f% A
operating in other jurisdictions TRABE ZE 50 875
Decrease in opening deferred tax PRERBERE L FES M
liabilities resulting from a decrease R 8 B
in applicable tax rate @D - (209)
Deferred taxation on withholding REK B RIRD AT
tax arising on undistributed PR TEHIRY
profits in PRC subsidiaries EREFR 1,911 1,347
Toxation for the year REFEHE 10,785 (1,554)

In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred Rt ABRHeE  FEENSHEEN

tax relating to the surplus on re-classification from prepaid HEFEEREAMERSHAREEY
lease payments to investment properties and revaluation of Fres B s BHBWBRECHE  2e8#
the Group's properties was charged or credited directly to B HE AR E W e et AR (R M5

other comprehensive income (see Note 23). 23) °

S E600C[E 7 8 B BB H Lk
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PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (Loss) for the year has been

arrived at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (Note 7)
Other staff costs
Retfirement benefits
schemes contributions,
excluding Directors

Auditor's remuneration
Allowance for inventories, net
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Cost of inventories
recognised as expense
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Exchange losses
Research and development costs
(included in administrative expenses)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

and after crediting:

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment property
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Net reversal of allowance for
bad and doubtful debts
Exchange gains

Gross rental income from
investment properties

Less: direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income during the year

Interest income from:
Bank deposits
Structured deposits
Available-for-sale investments
Trade debtors (Note)
Loans fo ajointly controlled entity

terms.

FEEN (BR)
EHRTIIER
B0 (W7)
HitESKA
RIKEH

HEIER

TERES

HHEME
FEBERFR
ENRETREH
R RRXH
FERA
nx - BER
REFTE
ERER
BiEN SN
(BRIERX)
HENE  BER
REEE

REEA:
HENE  BER
REES
HERENEAR
HETHHE
REEH®
RERRE
EhEE
36

RENERS
LN

B RAEREE

R RANRENE
ERBERX

MBI -

RITER

BRBUEER
AHHEERE
BHEBHA D)
BERT-HREHEE

Note: Interest was charged to trade debtors with extended credit

6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

FERM(EE)

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TER FEL
20,498 8214
358,950 430,725
16,907 16,177
396,355 455,116
2,530 2,565
8,498 2,114
1173 1,301
1,437,838 1,768,865
41,346 40,354
2,810 12,263
23,649 38,282
3,592 -

- 66

30 -

2 -

440 2,850
2,743 1,974
6,199 4,147

(287) (729)
5912 3418
1,569 7,680

- 398

3,327 2,487

- 49

5230 3,463

Bat - BSEBH AN SWERA A HIERE

16K o
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

A. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 13
(2008: 11) Directors were as follows:

2009

Fees
Other emoluments
Sclories ond other
benefits
Bonus (Note)
Contributions to
refirement benefits
schemes

Tofal emoluments

2008

Fees
QOther emoluments
Sclaries and other benefits
Bonus (Note)
Contributions to
refitement benefit
schemes

Tofal emoluments

&
e
Eeld
il
L)
RifEH
it

k]

£
g

FeRELE

TEAL ()
EirEA
B
&

k]

7. EEHER
& & %M
A EERHS
B ER 134 (2008 : 11%8)E
=R
2009
Li Kwok
Chan Chang Chen Cheng feng  Ho  Ho Huang Ku ling S
Chan  Ting Twng fang  Kar  lei  Shing  Ting Sheng Edward Afred  Sun Sun
luMin  Chuen  Yuon  Mei Shing Ming Chak Seng  lon Y. LilNan Ronald  Tony Tofal
BEE REI FER REE 030 2BH MWE AR EBE Bt 28% ZER REF 4o
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'0OO HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
Tén THn Tén Thr TEn TEr TEn TR TEn fEr THEn TEn TEr TEn
120 - -0 % % % - B0 %0 -
- 100 1418 - - - -1 - - - 12800 2016 18689
- MW A0 - - - - 1% - - - - N6 e
-k - - - - - b - - - - M
10 140 1473 60 96 %6 9% 1410 48 30 %6 12860 24583 2048
2008
Li Kok
Chon  Chong  Cheng  Feng Ho Ho fu Lung NE
Chan  Tng  Tsung Kar e Shng  Ting Edward Afred ~ SunSun
luMn ~ Chuen ~ Yuon ~ Shing  Ming  Chok  Seng Y. LifNon Ronald ~ Tony  Tofdl
EES REN PR Sxm BB BME MR Bt 283 ZEE WAR geE
HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD'OO0 HKD'000 HKD'OO0 HKD'000 HKD'0O HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'0O HKD'000 HKD'000
T Tin ThL TR TEn TA TEn TR TR TEL TR TEn
- - - % 9% % - - 9% 70 -
0 1M 143 - - - 100 10 - - 208 4009
- 20 00 - - - 130 - - - 3% 86
- 80 - - - - i - - - 101 25
0 140 163 % % 9% 1284 10 % 0 2458 8

Note: The bonus is based on the performance of individuals and

the entity.

No Director waived any emoluments for the year ended

31 December 2009 and 2008.

Hat - FEARERA TR ARNREM
B

B % 2009 F 2 2008412 A 31 H
L5 MEEERECANE -

~N
~N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ 7. EEHER
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) EEEHM (&)
B.  EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS B. {EEHM
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the 5 HE2009F12A31H L FE -
highest paid individuals included 3 (2008: 3) Directors RRARESHFEHNSBAL B
whose emoluments are disclosed in (A) above. The IBEF(20084F : 3%) - HEM
emoluments of the remaining 2 (2008: 2) individuals are HFMWER ESC(A)HE - HEfp24
as follows: (20084 : 24) ALEOEEMAD T ¢
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FiBx FHT
Salaries and other benefits e REAMET] 2,800 2,577
Retirement benefits BIKERIEE
schemes contributions K 120 65
2,920 2,642
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEMEHEMIvE &SRR -
2009 2008
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAE EEA™
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7t = 1,500,000 % 7T 2 2
8. DIVIDENDS 8. KA
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
Fix FHT
2008 final dividend of HKD0.010  EJ& 1 2008 FF iR A% 8.5 % i@ i%
(2008: 2007 final dividend 0.010787¢ (2008 : 2007 F £
of HKD0.022) per ordinary KIEE.0.022787T)

share paid 17,440 38,369
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DIVIDENDS (CONTINUED)

No interim dividend was declared or paid in 2008 and 2009.
For the year ended 31 December 2009, a final dividend of
HKDO0.013 (2008: HKDO0.010) per ordinary share, amounting to
HKD22,673,000 (2008: HKD17,440,000) has been proposed by
Directors and is subject fo the approval of Shareholders in
general meeting.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the following data:

Earnings (Loss) BRI (B8)
Profit (Loss) for the year attributable

to owners of the Company (HKD) (E518) (Bm)
Number of shares R EE
Number of ordinary shares in issue FABEITH

during the year TimkEE

The computation of diluted earnings per ordinary share does
not assume the exercise of share options for 2009 because the
exercise price of the Company’s option was higher than the
average market price of the shares.

The computation of diluted loss per ordinary share does not
assume the exercise of share options for 2008 because the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options has an
anfi-dilutive effect.

RABREE AEEFEE

’RE (%)

2008 £ %2 2009 4F 13 £ 5 15 N K 1+ B
BB e BLE2009F 12 A31 HIEFE -
EFRKNEARKRE S E BRI
7 r(2008:0.0108 L) L& WA
22,673,000 %7t (2008 : 17,440,000 7%
7T MAGKRRREFREHAE -

BREF (FE)

ARBEBREEABREEARKES
MR AR (B1R) THK NIRRT E

2009 2008

19,008,000  (226,508,000)

1,744,044,773  1,744,044,773

72009 F - R AR FBRENTTEE
HERBRHFEHE AELBEEEE
BB TR RARTT R BAE -

2008 4F - T AR R B HITM A
RITEE AV BB M & 5 Ak R 58 RUE - &
BREEE LT ARAN T REBRRITER
Pt -

N
O
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COST OR VALUATION
At 1 January 2008
Exchange realignment
Additions

Deficit arising on revaluation

Disposals

At 31 December 2008
Exchange realignment
Additions

Surplus arising on revaluation
Re-clossified to investment properties

Disposals
At 31 December 2009

Comprising:
At cost
At valuation - 2009

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2008

Exchange realignment

Provided for the year

Write back on revaluation

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2008
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Write back on revaluation
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2009

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2009

At 31 December 2008

RASE
R200851A1H
ERES

HE
EftELNER
&

72008512431 B
EXE

AE
EffELZ RS
EMNRERENE
&
#2009612A318

ag:
A
fh{E - 2009

HER

B
R2008F1A1H
ERET
FEERE
e
HERHEH
R2008512A318
ERET
FEEE
e
HEREE
12009124318

REE
120094124318

1200851231 A

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

10. ¥15% - BERRE

Furniture,

fixtures

Leasehold and

Freehold improve-  Plantand equipment

land ments machinery &R Motor

XA¥  Buildings  BEWE BER £EF  vehicles Total
Eih ¥ %8 R B4 RE atE
HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TAT TAT TEL TET TAR TAT TATL
5874 113,941 62,521 227 489 27,544 15,367 452,736
(69) 6,821 3,359 13,550 947 807 25,415
- 14,428 10,295 22,791 2,568 1,247 51,329
- (13,808) - - - - (13,808)
- - (425) (1,643) (253) (2,686) (5,007)
5,805 121,382 75750 262,187 30806 14,735 510,665
141 66 18 2 25 (35) 217
- - 8,441 6,483 3162 1,163 19,249
445 6,237 - - - - 6,682
- (21.113) - - - - (21.113)
- - (13,679) (28,591) (4,087) (3.599) (49.956)
6,391 106,572 70,530 240,081 29,906 12,264 465,744
- - 70,530 240,081 29,906 12,264 352,781
6,391 106,572 - - - - 112,963
6,391 106,572 70,530 240,081 29,906 12,264 445,744
- 4,001 47,060 113,777 15,898 11,340 192,076
- 254 2,492 6,190 635 583 10,154
- 6,948 5078 23,421 3,741 1,166 40,354
- (11,203) - - - - (11,203)
- - (373) (1,368) (246) (1,470) (3,457)
- - 54,257 142,020 20,028 11,619 227,924
- - 2 1 25 18 67
- 5512 8,452 22912 3,620 850 41,346
- (5.512) - - - - (5.512)
- - (10,697) (23,061) (3,384) (3.471) (40,613)
- - 52,035 141,872 20,289 9,018 223212
6,391 106,572 18,495 98,209 9,617 3,248 242,532
5,805 121,382 21,493 120,167 10,778 3,116 282,741
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated, after taking into account their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements 9%-45%
Plant and machinery 9%-45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%
Motor vehicles 16%-20%

During the year ended 31 December 2009, certain property,
plant and equipment of the Group were disposed of due to
closure of a production plant in PRC.

The buildings of the Group located in PRC and Hong Kong
were fair valued on 31 December 2009 by Prudential Surveyors
International Limited (“Prudential”), an independent firm
of professional property valuer, chartered surveyor. The
freehold land and building of the Group located in Taiwan
was fair valued as of the same date by ChiaTai Real Estate
Appraiser Office (“ChiaTai”), an independent firm of property
valuer, chartered surveyor. Prudential and Chia Tai are not
connected with the Group. The revaluation of freehold land
and buildings resulted in a surplus of HKD12,194,000 (2008: a
deficit of HKD2,605,000) which was credited (2008: charged)
directly to the properties revaluation reserve.

The valuations above adopted a direct comparison
approach with reference to market comparable sales
evidences available in the market.

If the freehold land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation of HKD5,946,000 and HKD?1,389,000 respectively
(2008: HKD5,805,000 and HKD109,245,000).

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has pledged buildings
having a carrying value of HKD14,237,000 (2008: Nil) to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group which had not
been utilised during the year.

M MERRE (&)

EXFriieh % - BB RRENIERTY
REBEEERFNBKEERR TIIFEUE
BOEIE -

KA FERE L1 =

BF 2%-5%
HEWERE 9%-45%
5 KR8 A 9%-45%
RIE - RERF 9%-20%
AE 16%-20%

HZE2009F12A31 BILFE - BAXRE
BB -RUNPRENEERE 8D
HEETYE  BELR

20096124318 » NEBERAHE K
FENEFTOBE L EEYEMGEN R
APAEMARTARAR(HET]) &
TEM - AEEERENKAXERE LI
EEFRABR - BIEXMEEER
SESED EUEEﬂiﬁi/J\T@JEJEFEﬁ$i§§ﬁﬁ
(TMER ) ETER - AETREFER
SEWEBAE - KAERLHRBTH
EHA#RE12,194,000% 7T (2008 : EE
#)2,60500087C)  WEBHEEWMHRE
flEREFET A (2008 = HIB) -

PRAEEDAERSLELSETHE
PMENBERERZEMEE

XA RBT W EEN(EE
HER DR AR LKA RATE
75,946,000/ 7T 1 91,389,000% 7T
(2008 : 5,805,000 7T & 109,245,000
BIT) st AR A MK

M2009F12A318 AAF 2 EA
ETRBFUER-BETAEEN R
RIOTEERE ZFETHEREER
14,237,000 7T (2008 : #&) « F N » %
EERBAREDA -

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

11.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FAIR VALUE NEEE

At 1 January 2008 M2008F1 A1H

Additions NE

Disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR

Net decrease in fair value RIBREREN
recognised in profit or loss NEEERDRE

At 31 December 2008 2008 12 531 H

Additions NE

Re-classified from property, BYE¥E - BEN&RE
plant and equipment NN

Re-classified from prepaid BEMAEERE
lease payments NN

Net increase in fair value RIBaHER R
recognised in profit or loss R EREENFE

Disposals HE

At 31 December 2009

M2009512H31H

1. REWF

Investment

properties Completed
under investment
construction properties

FEHH 27K Total

REME REME Hew

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

FHT FAT FAT

- 144,500 144,500

- 96,422 96,422

- (96,422) (96,422)

- (32,050) (32,050)

- 112,450 112,450

117,027 - 117,027

- 21,113 21,113

- 25,200 25,200

2,290 55,460 57,750

- (2,500) (2,500)

119,317 211,723 331,040

All of the Group's leasehold interests in land and building
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2009 and 2008 were arrived at on the basis
of valuations carried out on that date by Prudential. The
valuations of completed investment properties were arrived
with reference to market comparable sales evidences
available in the market and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of net income provided by management to
Prudential. The valuations of the investment properties under
construction were based on the sales prices, having regard to
the enhancement to the possible joint site development of the
investment properties.

AEBREEHEFEES WAL ERE
ERENAEL B RETNEEER -
AR TFEEERGE  UHBERAEK

#2009 F K 2008 12 A 31 H + A&EH
BREWMENRFEET B BRITHRET
EfEBANELESE - WBABEDNZE
ISR MEN A LR EMEE - i
B MERERERETHRTNE
FALFWAGTE - BEPHREYED
HEDREEEE  YEEIEMS
WRBERMETIREYEMETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, a large portfion of the
investment properties were rented out under operafing leases.
Details of operating lease arrangements are set out in Note 30.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has pledged certain
investment properties having a carrying value of
HKD158,228,000 (2008: Nil) to secure general banking facilities
granted o the Group which had not been utilised in 2009.

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

Properties in Hong Kong: BRI
Long-term lease REAMEE
Medium-term lease FHIRE

Properties outside Hong Kong: BHEAINDZE -
Medium-term lease FHATEE

The Group had acquired the land use rights for 2 pieces of
land in PRC. As at 31 December 2009, the Group has not
obtained the formal title to these land interests and the
carrying value was HKD119,317,000. In the opinion of Directors,
the absence of formal titles of these land interests do not
impair their value to the Group as the Group has paid the
full purchase consideration of the land interests and the
probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence of
formal title is remote.

11.

REW=(R)

#2009 4 200812 A31 H - K&k
REVEEREEHEHE - KEHE
ZHE R R E S NMIFE30

M2009F12A31H - ARRIEEMETF
REMENER —E T AEE M — KR
TEERE ZEREVENREER
158,228,000 % 7T (2008 : &) - 7 2009
F - ZEERBREDHA -

LAY ENREE R
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TET
6,300 4,950
188,376 107,500
136,364 -
331,040 112,450

AREBERTEBAMRE L2 T ibE M
# - R2009F 127310 AEE AR
ETZFLHOHEARE  ZFLHH
FRE{ES119,317,000/87T - EFR5
ZELZBETEEARRZS L 0E
mZ EAXEMRD  BAKEE &
SrHEaTHEENBERE  BEEARX
TRIES A% H A A REIERE o

(0]
w
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12

13.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 12

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong: BANEE L
Held under medium-term lease  AFRERTER A
Leasehold land outside BRI E
Hong Kong: b
Held under medium-term lease  AFRERER A

Analysed for reporting DITYERS
pUrposes as: A% -
Non-current assets IERBEE

Current assets MEVEE

During the year, certain prepaid lease payments of the Group
were re-classified to investment properties.

GOODWILL 13
COST %N
At 1 January 2008, M2008F1 518

31 December 2008 and 2009 2008 FF K 200912 A31 H
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2008 R 200841 81 H
Impairment loss recognised in the year  FRIERHFERE
At 31 December 2008 and 2009 22008 F [ 2009 12 A 31 H
CARRYING AMOUNT BRMEE
At 31 December 2009 72009412831 H
At 31 December 2008 H20084F 1231 H

Particulars regarding impairment festing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 14.

. BNHEERIA

AEENANEEFTIARE

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR T
20,294 29,720
19,360 21,784
39.654 51,504
38,604 50,203
1,050 1,301
39.654 51,504

FA - AETHENEHERBECET SRR

BREWE -

. B8

HKD'000
T

57,477

57,477

57,477

ERBEEORENAFBERME 145

HE -



14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in
Note 13 was attributed to 2 cash generating units (“CGUs"),
Misto Worldwide Limited and Nice Well Holdings Limited.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs had been determined
based on value in use calculations. That value in use
calculations used cash flow projections based on financial
budgefs approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and a discount rate of 12%. Both subsidiaries’ cash
flows were extrapolated without application of any growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use calculations
was the budgeted gross margin, which was determined
based on the units’ past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Based on the above value in use calculations, it was
determined that the carrying amount of the goodwill was no

longer recoverable and accordingly, the Group recognised a
full impairment loss of HKD57,477,000 in 2008.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in

an associate — unlisted (3E L)
Share of post-acquisition losses (HU S R R A
and other comprehensive income FEUA

R—EERFHRERAR

14.

15.

B RVRER A

B ERBENR - ERMF130HE
PR 2EARCELAEN((HRHEELE
fiz]) » 5 Bl AMisto Worldwide Limited
M Nice Well Holdings Limited e

ReELEUr KEERLTENEER
hEEFE - WEAREENFETR
HEBEDELNS FUBHEENRDR
STEB R IAFTINE2%5TE « 2w
NAMR SR EEFT W BT AERER
Ko m—HHEEMAPEENIEZRRA
AHEEN  DEREMBEEERR
REEEBHTISERNEHMEE

R LMW ERPEENE  BHEN
FRmE W EE &N B A B Fi
& B 72008 FF B B R R EE B
57,477,000 BT °

R—BERTNRE
2009/2008
HKD'000
THET
26

(2¢)

(0]
(6]
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15. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

16.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests in

the following associate:

Form of
business
Entity structure
Global Hero Incorporated
Group Limited b2
HHERAR AR

Place of
incorporation/
operation

A EE R

British Virgin
Islands (“BVI")

HEELHS
((KEBEZES )

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/
ADVANCE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Interests in jointly controlled entities:

Cost of unlisted investments
in jointly confrolled entities
(Note i)

Share of post-acquisition
net losses and other
comprehensive income,
net of dividends received

Advance to jointly controlled entities:

Non-current advance to a jointly
controlled entity (Note ii)

Shareholders’ loan to a jointly
controlled entity (Note iii)

HEESE R

RIREH R
FEEHERER
B (D

BB R EE
FEREMERE
W (Rat
BEURLR)

BT RS

ERBERT R
5 B (B

BREERTF—HE
PRI 88 (R 3T i)

15. R—BEQRNKRE (&)

72009 4 [ 2008 £ 12 A31 H - A &EH
$75 T A A -

Proportion of
nominal valuve of
issued capital
held by the Group

Class of AEEFEN  Principal
share held ERITRAE activity
BHERBER HEBDHL FEEH
Ordinary 33.46% Dormant
B RE

16. HEEHIEEES
BERFHEEHEE
B FEfTHE
BHIERE
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
225,906 172,281
(169,128) (94,009)
56,778 78,272
108,335 64,974
62,775 62,775
171,110 127,749
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16. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/

ADVANCE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

16. HEZEHERES
EXTHEEZEHNER
FEW, AT H[E]

EHIER (%)

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had interests in the
following jointly confrolled entities:

Jointly
controlled entity
HEEHER

Smart Shine Industries
Limited

Grand Wealth Group
Limited (“Grand Wealth")
([Grand Wealth |)

China Ocean Resources
Limited (“China Ocean”)
([China Ocean])

JFT Holdings Limited
("JFT")

RHERERERRR
((HEE])

Welcome Wealth Properties
Limited (“"Welcome Wealth")
([Welcome Wealth )

Splendours International
Limited (“Splendours”)
LEERERAR(RE])

Place of
incorporation
sk

BVI
RRRLESE

BVI
RRRLESE

BVI
RRRLESE

Hong Kong

BVI

RERAKE

BVI
RRRLESE

Class of
share held
5B
RBER

Ordinary

Ordinary
Preferred
Bk
(Note iv)
(FisEiv)

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

2009 € 2008412 A31 B - &"&EH
B

SN T ARSI B

Proportion of
nominal valve
of issued capital
indirectly held
by the Group
AEEBEN
BRITRA
EERAT

2009

50%

50%

18%

50%

50% (Note i)
G

50% (Note i)

(M)

50% (Note i)
G

2008

50%

50%

18%

50%

Principal activities
TELEED

Investment holding
and footwear frading
REZRRERE S

Investment holding and
men's apparel marketing
and frading

REBRESTRESHETES

Investment holding, trademark
rights licensing and
footwear trading

REER B2

Investment holding and
retailing of apparel,
footwear and accessories

BEER KR -
EFEERHTE

Investment holding and
footwear trading
REZBRRERE S

Footwear sourcing

ERRE

(0]
N
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16. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/
ADVANCE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

During the year, the Group invested HKDS53,625,000 as capital
contribution into 3 newly established jointly confrolled entities,
namely, JFT, Welcome Wealth and Splendours.

ii. During the year, the Group has made additional advance
amounting to HKD43,361,000 to China Ocean, a jointly
controlled entity. The total advance was unsecured, interest-
free with no fixed term of repayment. The Group has no intention
to exercise its right fo demand repayment of the advance
within the next 12 months from the reporting date. Directors
believe the settlement of the advance is not likely to occur
in the foreseeable future and that it is, in substance, a part of
the Group’s net investment in China Ocean. Accordingly, the
amount is classified as non-current asset.

iii. The shareholders’ loan to Grand Weath was unsecured and
interest-bearing at aggressive rates up fo maturity which ranged
from 8% to 11% (2008: 8%) per annum, and denominated in
USD. The maturity date of the shareholders’ loan is 30 June 2016.
Directors believe the settlement of the advance is not likely to
occur in the foreseeable future and that it is, in substance, a part
of the Group’s net investment in Grand Wealth.

iv. The preferred shares shall have the same right and privileges to
income as the ordinary shares in the proportion of 99:1.

The amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amount due from jointly controlled entities is expected to be
repaid within next 12 months from the reporting date and is
classified as current asset.

16. HEZEHERES
BEXTHEZHER
/W FEAT HL[E]

EHIER (5

RERE - AEE A E 53,625,000/
TTHRER=ZFAM R KREGEE -

ii. RERE - REBEINEFA43,361,0008
7T —HFAEHEE China Ocean -
HEFBWMER  RAFERERTE
fEFREFE - RS ARRMARRI2MEA
A AEBEEERITENESGZ AR
HIERBEEZEN - ERAE - ZBR
TERARGRKEE  MEE LRAE
2 China Ocean KIEMH 1 & 48 -
At - ZRREDERERDEE

. #%F Grand Weath®lREEH KA
ERENEFE  FFREE8BE%
(2008 : 8%) EBEEZ|HAA + WIAE T
Tl BREERKEE B A2016%F6
A30H - =l ZRREKXTE
RAREREE  WELE ERAEER
Grand Wealth 892518 & F 58 ©

iv.  BERSR MLMIEEREBRE
BEE VN A PSESE:

JE W FE AN LR 2 5 3 RS B ARIE R SR K
A RBE LAREBREREFEE - A
HEEAREGHEERERENEAME
BEEREI2ME A ARBE - BRI ER
MBEE °
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16. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/

ADVANCE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to jointly
controlled entities at the reporting date denominated in

16. HEEZEHERERS
EXTHEEZEHNER
FEW, AT H[E]

EHIER (%)

RIER  REBUINE (BB £E
BV R FE T R RE S E R R EA IR

foreign currency (i.e. HKD) are as follows: BT
Amounts due from Amounts due to
W B
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FAT FHET FExT
HKD BT 40 3,982 - 393

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
attributable interest in its jointly controlled entities which are
accounted for using the equity method is set out below:

Current assets mEEE
Non-current assets IEMENEE

Current liabilities mENAE
Non-current liabilities FEnRBaE

Income recognised in profit or loss RBEPEREWA
Expenses recognised in profit or loss REBRPERNFAX

Other comprehensive income (expense) HAbira U A (FIs2)

AEBERHKREGEENEEER AR
BEARZHBERBAMT

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT FHET
116,494 68,353
182,345 178,578
(69.766) (53,870)
(172,295) (114,789)
68,454 70,176
(126,952) (171,585)
5,320 (3,108)
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17.

18.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Listed investments: FHRA
— Equity securities listed in — BB LTH
Hong Kong M&AFE 5
— Equity securities listed outside —BBLAIMBIE ETTHY
Hong Kong M&AFE 5
- Debentures listed outside —BAEIMNDE ETHEES -

Hong Kong with fixed
interest ranging from

7.200% to 8.375% per annum
and maturity dates on

28 March 2013, 15 April
2013, 15 June 2013 and

15 December 2049

2013544158 »
20135 6 A15H K
204912151

JE LA S

Total B

Unlisted equity securities

As af 31 December 2008 and 2009, all listed investments were
stated at fair value. Fair values were determined by reference
fo market bid prices quoted in relevant stock exchanges.

The unlisted equity securities above is the Group's investment
in Full Pearl International Limited ("Full Pearl"), a company
incorporated in BVI, whose subsidiaries are engaged in
retailing business in PRC. The investment represents a 18.8%
holding of the ordinary shares of Full Pearl and is measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporfing period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that Directors are of the opinion that their fair values
cannotf be measured reliably.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress &M
Finished goods B

17.

18.

Bt & E =R 7.200% = 8.375%
F|#H A201343 42808 -

AJHEERE
2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD’000
FHET TR
1 22
- 775
41,530 35,089
41,531 35,886
18,480 18,480
60,011 54,366

F2 2008 4F £ 2009 F 12 A31 B - AT L
MREHGUARTFEELZY - 2 FEET
S2ERERZMNERBEMETE -

BRERAF(ER]DWKRE  EY
—MREBELZESEMAZIMHRE
HEHMBRARARTERETEER - 2K
BIERHEEY 18.8% LB ER - IR
BEHRRERAMRREME - AR
MEBATEERERRENE HES
RAREENRTEEREASEME

S
aF

iy

ﬁffb
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET T
41,374 74,614
43,150 68,369
86,730 126,165

171,254 269,148
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables Z SRR
Less: allowance for doubtful debts & : REREE

Other receivables, prepayment HAbEUREE - TENKIAE
and deposits &

Total trade and other receivables 5 & Eith fE W BR 4B %8

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60
to 90 days to its frade customers. Included in tfrade and other
receivables are frade and bill receivables, net of allowance
for doubtful debts of HKD163,123,000 (2008: HKD313,940,000).
The following is an aged analysis of frade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0E 30K
31 to 60 days 31 E 60K
61 to 90 days 61 £90K
Over 90 days # 90K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and score afttributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2008: 97%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no
default payment history.

Included in the Group's frade receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HKD2,041,000 (2008:
HKD9,158,000) which were past due at the reporting date but
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 120 days (2008: 120 days).

19. ESZREMERERR

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET TFHT
168,903 320,160
(5,780) (6,220)
163,123 313,940
54,685 145,121
217,808 459,061

FEBREESEPREEASHOAE0
ATENTHEES - REMEY
BR BB HE A #0163,123,000 7% 7t (2008 :
313,940,000 7T ) 1 & 5 K e =45 (40
BRRREME) - RARMEHR - UBERHA
HAER ZEHREBERMBREEMSG
WRRE DTN T

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
TR THET
156,222 242,559
4,518 58,416
342 3,807
2,041 9,158
163,123 313,940

REMRTBERTERN  AEESHRM—
BUGESHEARUGEZERFHE
ZE O UTETXEFPNEERE -FP
MEEBERSBEEFET2RR
99% (2008 : 97%) JEM AR BN E 5
R A2 B R L SR R N AR AT 8 o

FEENBESRREREGRBERE
#1E492,041,0007% 7T (2008 : 9,158,000
B REEER - ZERRREBH
HEZS 5 B30 MO E B R TR - AR
BAEMSERBEENEAR - ILEFRE
LK BR R 9 AR S % 120 X (2008 : 120
R) e

~O
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19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Ageing of frade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

Over 90 days # 90K

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year — F#1#: &
Impairment losses recognised B R EARTERY
on receivables BIEETE
Impairment losses reversed REER R
Balance at end of the year FIGER

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's frade and other receivables that were denominated
in a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT

19.

BZ RHEMEWRR (&)

I EREN B HE Z KR RAERER

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHT
2,041 9,158
REE BT
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHT
6,220 9,070
3,520 1,450
(3,960) (4,300)
5,780 6,220

K EH M fEYRIAMBRE(E T -

2009
HKD’000
FET

18

2008
HKD'000
TR

9.715




20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held-for-trading investments include: #H{EEEIREBIE ¢

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong &8 _ L RIAL A RE 5

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances carried interests at prevailing market rates
which ranged from 0.01% to 0.36% (2008: 0.36% to 1.15%) per
annum during the year. The time deposits carried fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.50% (2008: 0.05% to 2.99%) per
annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's bank balances and cash that were denominated in
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT

20.

21.

KEEERE
2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TET
321 4,055
RITEBRRRE

FR ROTEHBBRATHSFENX
7T F0.01% % 0.36% 1~ % (2008 : 0.36%
£1.15%) 7t B o EHFFIZEE FH
*0.01%%0.50% T % (2008 : 0.05% =
2.99%) R o

RAREYRR  AEENEBEEEER
DEEER UM ERE (BIETT) sHERM R

ITRBIRESNREENT
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET TET
15,161 5,448

O
w
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables B S REMNERR
Other payables, temporary HAFERBRIR - BRI IR

receipt and accruals M IEFTERK

Included in tfrade and other payables are trade and bills
payables of HKD159,737,000 (2008: HKD237,381,000). The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0£ 30K
31 to 60 days 31 £ 60K
61 to 90 days 61 E290K
Over 90 days 890K

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place
fo ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time
frame.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's frade and other payables that were denominated in
a currency (i.e. HKD) other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities were as follows:

HKD BT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

22. EZREMEMAIRK

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR T
159,737 237,381
151,568 157,646
311,305 395,027

B 5 MEMERIRRRIEA2159,737,000
# 7T (2008 : 237,381,000/ T) W E 5
MEWERE RAREHR UEEA
HMAEEM ZEZEMEROERERTH
T

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TR
82,072 84,484
39.827 83,394
16,594 30,457
21,244 39,046
159,737 237,381

BENFHEEHRIOKR  AEEEH
TE B 7 R B TR B AR DA BE R TR B AN IR
FTAREEBRALE -

RABRERR  AEEANAREEER
IR B AN EE (BB T) sHEM
B REMEMNRROREERT

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET TR
7,184 19,714
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23. DEFERRED TAX 23. EERIE
The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax balances EUMBRERAESNEEHBESRS T
for financial reporting purposes: TR
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FExT FET
Deferred tax assets RERIRE E (13,127) (10,085)
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIBERE 28,303 9,925
15,176 (160)
The following table shows the major deferred tax liabilities AEBEHRANEIBEERBAGE(E
(assets) recognised by the Group and movements thereon E) REERAFERBTFENED
during the current and prior years: BRIATE
Undistributed
earmning
of PRC's
subsidiaries
Revaluation Allowance from1
Revaluation of Accelerated forbadand January 2008  Unredlised
of investment fax doubiul  E2008% profit on
properties  properties  depreciation debts 1818 inventories Tax

3 Ranx it REE  RTENE AEEH losses Tofal
EfiEE EfiEE RERE B DARAREFA FEER REEE ok ]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

FEn Thn Tin TEn Tn TEn Tén Tn

A1 Jonuary 2008 R008E 1§18 340 8379 6624 (1139 - 8 8T 7009
Fffectof changesinfaxrate  HEEEMZL(:A)

[credit) chorge fo profitorloss A EBR - 479) (378) 65 - 18 565 209)
Fifect of chongesinfaxrofes  HEEE

credit fo ofher Ll YNt

comprehensive income FalA (253) - - - - - - 253)
(Credit) Charge fo profitorloss (3t A) A B A B - (5,994] (2,103) 52 1,347 7l - (6,157)
Creditfo other AL

comprehensive income Fals (640) - - - - - - 640)
At 31 December 2008 R008E12A31B 2509 1,906 4143 (552) 1,347 (219) (9.314) (160)
Charge (Credif) toprofitorloss 07 (2t0) B - 10289 60 9 1911 ) (3163 9778
Charge fo other MEtEalE

comprehensive income 5,558 - - - - - - 5,958

At 31 December 2009 R2009512A318 8,087 12,195 4,763 (513) 3,258 (137) (12477) 15,176

~O
(6}
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23. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2009, the Group had unused tax losses
of HKD227,378,000 (2008: HKD161,627,000) available to
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses to the extent of
HKD75,620,000 (2008: HKD56,446,000). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax
losses of HKD151,758,000 (2008: HKD105,181,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely except for those arising from PRC
which may be carried forward for 5 years.

24. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2008, 31 December
2008 and 2009, at HKD0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: EEITRAR
At 1 January 2008, 31 December

2008 and 2009, at HKDO0.25 each

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 22 October 2001 (*2001 Scheme”), the
Company operates the 2001 Scheme for the purpose of
providing eligible participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
partficipants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its Shareholders as a whole. All Directors, full-time employees
and any other persons who, at the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group are eligible to
participate in the 2001 Scheme.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2001 Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of adoption.

23.

24.

25.

IEFERIE (4])

2009128318 AEBEA RSB
i 18 &5 18 49227,378,000% 7T (2008
161,627,000 7T ) A 35K 88 K 5% 7 -
AN B EEERRETHREEE
#175,620,0007% 75(2008 : 56,446,0008
Jo) e AR A BHARN BB - W
ERL TR AR ABIIAEIE4) 151,758,000
7 7T (2008 : 105,181,000 7T ) FE R Ik
ERRIBEE - TBHMIBAEIEN &R AL
B MR E PR EI A A 5 FFH AR
AIBRON ©

200841 A1 H - 2008 4 K 2009
127318 - SEEC.25ETT

7200841 A1 H - 2008 4 & 2009 5
12831 H - BREMHEO0.25%T

&N

Number of shares Amount
RHEE -]
HKD'000
FHET
8,000,000,000 2,000,000
1,744,044,773 436,011

iR AEST 2

RIEAR R T 2001 F 10 A 22 BEAE
B RT3 (12001 51 &1 ) - AQFEIRA
2001 sHEIE ERHEKE TRER2EE
REARAMEEERD TRBHSEE
NARBREBRRAOEENGEBIKE
HAORSARRARERNNEE - A
B 2REEUREZENERRY
RABeHAREFERHBOERE D
ATHFAERSE2001 518 °

AT 2001 fH SR EMARFE
BRAN B0 BB BECHE T 81 T JE 55 0 P A PR AL
1& A BE AT MO AR () 48 RS T BE SR ML AN
DA E HEBETRH 10% °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The Company may renew this 10% limit with Shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not exceed
10% of shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
Shareholders' approval.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2001 Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to fime.

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and unexercised options) under the 2001 Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by the Company in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the fime of grant. This period
must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
opftions. At the time of grant of the options, the Company may
specify a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 14 days from the date on which the
letter containing the offer is delivered to that participant and
the amount payable on acceptance of an option is HKD1.00.

The subscription price for the Shares to be issued upon exercise
of the options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheefs issued by the Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of each Share on the date of grant. The subscription
price will be established by the Board at the fime the option is
offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the 2001 Scheme after
the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the 2001
Scheme.

25. BBIRAESTE ()

MRS IRILAE - RARAIBEEHTIL10%
BOPREE - MEHZ L ST W IR B AT O R
17 BB T B S M AN R R PR IR SR L
EHDETRMNNI10% -

B8 77 {8 P & #22001 51 &l 3k fE ] H i &
X FBR A9V ) 1 PR T B 7 R T ME R AT
{52 £ B BRCHE T ) BE 31T A9 AN A Rl AL 1D 4R
B TEMBEAARR AR HITR
178 30% °

BRIEERR R AL - PMEMR 1218 A HIRS
AR T RFTEZ 2001 51 &8 s AT H A 7R
DERAOEREE TR T RS2 8EE
BRI (BIEE 1T R M ARITEA RS
) HB BT RS T EITH RN 82
AABEARB D ETHRM 1%

BREVETENBESEHRRAER
HE HIETE o b R MR R R B R
EHRIOFANER - NI HERER
AREF G R AERENRIERAH
R FFHREMRTERITE  ARK
HERENE TREE  2EEANES
ERREEZSENNTNTHBELI4RA
ERZER M REAUBRERSE
BN RIBR BT -

AREHRITEBREM A ETHORO R
BEBTEERCARSERE) (1) R
HEREE BRI NBERMERETH
WERNARRBROUE (1) REE
B BB AR R 0 5 8 TR TIRABE 2 P
FREBETHREROAQRRN FHK
A R (i) RREEBREE AR QR
MHEE - RBEFHEFINERR
HEBRRET20EE AT -

AER# 2001 T EIREH 10BF B - B
BB E R 12 2001 FHEIM R -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

On 2 August 2006, the Company granted 166,050,000
share options o eligible parficipants at an exercise price
of HKD1.032 pursuant fo 2001 Scheme. The following table
discloses details of the share options held by Directors,
employees and a consultant and movements in such holding
during the year ended 31 December 2009:

Date of Exercisable Exercise price
Name grant period per share
£ REBE TRBR BRITRE
(d.m.y) (d.m.y) (HKD)
(B.5.5) (B.R.%) (A7)
Cotegoryl:  4&5II:
Directors 2 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032
Cotegory I 5l :
Employees EE 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032
Cotegory Il Z&5II -
Consultant EE 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032

The consultant rendered consultancy service with regard to
the sefting up and management of PRC operations for the
Group. The Group granted share options to him for recognising
his service similar to those rendered by other employees.

25.

B E (&)

20068 A28 - & A 7 R #2001
P& LA E B 1T E1.0328 T &
166,050,000 HHERETEEKE T
F e TRBBEREZE2009F12A3181t
FE - ZF BEEL—EZERMENE
AR HEH) -

Number of share options
BREHE

0

utstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed Expired at
1.1.2009 during during  31.12.2009
R theyear  theyear R®
1.1.2009 RER RER  31.12.2009

i RATE P EL B PR

43,600,000 (16,500,000 (27,100,000) -

33,910,000 (13,500,000) (20,410,000) -

1,000,000 - (1,000,000 -

78,510,000 (30,000,000) (48,510,000) -

ZEMBR IR EBREERN P BN
BREBARRE AEERERLEBR
RIRFRERENRGEEMERASE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following fable discloses details of the 2001 Scheme held
by Directors, employees and a consultant and movements in
such holdings during the year ended 31 December 2008:

Exercise
Exercisable price
Name Date of grant period per share
B RERE TRER BRORE
[dm.y) (dm.y) (HKD)
(B.5.5) (B.R.%) (A7)
Category l: %8311
Directors = 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032
Category Il %831 :
Employees B8 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032
Category Il %8511 :
Consultant B 02.08.2006 01.09.2006 - 31.08.2009 1.032

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital fo ensure that entifies in the
Group will be able to confinue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the opfimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
aftributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

25. BBIRAESTE ()

TRBEEEHZ2008F12A31 HIEFEH
B EENR—ZEBAEE2001 12
BRI IE R EEE) -

Number of share options
BREHE

Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed at
1.1.2008 during  31.12.2008
R® the year R®
1.1.2008 RER 31.12.2008
i RATE P4 AT
43,600,000 - 43,600,000
40,610,000  (6,700,000) 33,910,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

85,210,000

(6,700,000) 78,510,000

26. ELEBERE

AREFEBEEAURERNEENE R

QPSS E-F<3

WE(L B E N BT

BUREECNEHBEDR - AEEFR
B EFLEES o

REBEEARR

SRERARRERRH

ABEREGZ(BRDBETRARERH

) o

S E600C[E 7 8 B BB H Lk



o
(@)

symphony holdings limited 2009 annual report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

26.

27.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Directors review the capital structure of the Group regularly. As
part of this review, Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues
as well as the issue of new debft or the redemption of existing
debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)  CAarteGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets SREE
Fair value through profit BBBRRAF
or loss BE=
- held-for-trading —RBEEH
investments ®&
Loans and receivables BRI ERERR
(including bank (BIERITHS
balances and cash) KEE)
Available-for-sale AHIEE
financial assets eRMEE
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Amortised cost BESHAOR

(8)  FINANCIAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PoliciEs

The Group's major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, amounts due from/to
jointly controlled entities, frade and other receivables,
held-for-trading investments, bank balances and cash,
tfrade and other payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial insfruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

26.

27.

ExEBER (&)

EETHENASEERARE - EREF
B —an  EFREEREAZEHNER
HENEARARER - RIEESFHE
BER AEESEENEE - BT
1A% T2 B8 [ B ) A R B AT M B 7 Sk [T
BEER  FEEBRREREE -

TRT R

() SBIEAEH

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TR
321 4,055
766,709 875,248
60,011 54,366
208,136 299,067

() =REREZEEERBEEK

AEEHNFESRI T AR HH
EIRE - R EMSLRIEGEE
IE - B REMEUARR - #51E
BEERE  ROEHLEES  BSH
MEAMBMAER - USRI AR
HIEHANEEMTE B EER
TAE@AONRARBED SRR (E
BB o N3 R B e E (B AR R
) EERR RREHE SRR o
BE L EFRBAOBRDEHINT
X BEEERBEREREREER
o WERA REA U REGEE
iiii
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

27. €W T A (&)

(8)  FiNANCIAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PoOLICIES (CONTINUED) (5) eRMERETEEEZRICK(A)
Marker Risk 5 E ks
(i) Currency Risk (i) EEEE
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign AEENETHBARMNEE KE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group B AINEEE - SAREBEZIN
to foreign currency risk. KRR o
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts RAREHR - AEEEEER
of the Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities BEROMEEEINNEE (BNE
that were denominated in a currency (i.e. HKD) other T EENAEBEBEERE
than the functional currency of the relevant group BEMNER@ERT :
entities were as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FHERT FHET FET FHET
HKD BT 7,184 20,107 15,219 19,145
Sensitivity Analysis B IZ T
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in USD/ NEBMEEEZET, BLEERE
HKD exchange rate. However, the foreign currency risk is B - AW BRETRETE
noft significant as HKD is pegged to USD. 9 - ONE R TR o
(i) Interest Rate Risk (i) FEE

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and loan to a
jointly controlled entity. Directors consider the Group's
exposure fo fair value interest rate risk is not significant as
interest bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
periods.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits. It is the policy of
the Group to keep its deposits at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The cash flow interest rate risk of the Group is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the USD
denominated bank deposits of the Group.

REERESRITFARERT —
HEEZESE R AERFEENX
Bk - EERR > ARG ERTHE
REERT - HREHEEYRE
it MAKEAENRTEET
TR R

4 85 B 7 R T R A R T B
$17 17 BT E R % B IR,
B o KRB B TR AT R
ST B A DR IE A T B F R
B -

AEENRELRER R I EEPHE
EBIRITEER SN K RRBIRT
FIZEHFEN NS - ZFERART
KEAEBUAXRTHEENRTE

g
A °
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S E600C[E 7 8 B BB H Lk



(@)
N

symphony holdings limited 2009 annual report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e)

FINANCIAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MaARKET Risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(ii)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to inferest rates for both
derivative and non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
these financial insfruments oufstanding at the end of
the reporfing date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest ratfe risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 would
increase/decrease by HKD86%,000 (2008: loss would
decrease/increase by HKD863,000). This is mainly
aftributable to the Group's exposure fo interest rates on
its variable-rate bank deposits.

Other Price Risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through ifs
investments mainly in both equity and debt securities.
The other price risk of the Group is mainly concentrated
on debt securifies listed outside Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

27. TR T A (&)

(2)

SREAMREEEEREE (&)

miEmE (&)

(i)

(iii)

FlEmbz (%)

ATHRESN EEERERE D
R PTETARITETANF=
B EE o« RAREER - RO
BERZEALANEBRTANEF
BIARRLE - FEBRABOEZEE
IR A B FE R 2 E B & SR AR S0 B
EARTHRARE  WIIRKRER
[EHF RN A IR R REZ B RS -

IR EF TRR50ES  RE
fth BT AT 2 R A T2 - RIS
B & =200 12 A31 B L& E
B A& 38 0, % 2> 869,000 7
7t (2008 : 0, 2> 863,000 7
) o W EBRAEEKE A £
FREBETRRIBITTERIES
FIRRBFTE ©

A ERE LR

AREBHBRAREFEFREEHR
AYEEAMERER o NEB R EM
ErEREZRTNETE AN
B EMMEBIEA  BRIELASN &
SEER—FEAKE - AEEEM
ErERE - WREELERE B
I JEL i AR



(e)

FINANCIAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MaRKET Risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Other Price Risk (continued)

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed equity and debt
instruments had been 5% higher:

o profit for the year ended 31 December 2009
would increase by HKD13,000 (2008: loss for the
year would decrease by HKD169,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments; and

o investments revaluation reserve would increase by
HKD2,077,000 (2008: increase by HKD1,794,000) for
the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective listed equity and debt
insfruments had been 5% lower:

o profit for the year ended 31 December 2009
would decrease by HKD13,000 (2008: loss for the
year would increase by HKD169,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments; and

. investments revaluation reserve would decrease
by HKD2,077,000 (2008: decrease by HKD7,750,000
which would be charged to the consolidated
statfement of comprehensive income, increasing
the loss for the year of the same amount), for the
Group as a result of the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments.

The Group's sensifivity to available-for-sale investments
and held-for-frading investments has not changed
significantly from the prior year.

e MBHRRIE

(6) 2REMREEBEZERBEGE)

5 E ks ()

(iii) B EEEE ()
BURZE T

NTBRESTEBRERNERSH
FrsdE A B R AR -

AR LA R AR T AER £
TH5% :

. ERFHEEERENADTE
BE#E BHZE2009F12 A
31 B IEFE&F 113,000
770 (2008 = F JZ 5 18R
169,000 7T) « &

. ERNAHEERENR
FTEEEY AEEKE
& 7 45 102,077,000 8
70(2008 : #5511,794,0007%
K

AR LA REH T AER T
5%

. ERFHEEERENAFE
BE#E B ZE2009F12 A
31 B IEFE &F#E 113,000
77t (2008 : FZ EEE N
169,000 7T) « &

. ENTHIHEREANATE
B2 AEEKEEH
5 1 15 8 4 2,077,000 7T
(2008 : & & EEEEER
47,750,000 7T ) * #% K
BB RERE 2 ERE R AN
B BRFEEEBZESS
BAIE AN o

HILEF  AREHAHEERE
RFEEEBEERENHRE S EAN

o
w

S E600C[E T i B B E /L



o
N

symphony holdings limited 2009 annual report

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(8)  FiNanciAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PoLICIES (CONTINUED)
Crepit Risk

As at 31 December 2009, the maximum exposure of the Group
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
fo failure fo discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of confingent liabilities
in relation to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in Note 29.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
tfo ensure that follow-up action is faken fo recover overdue
debfts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irecoverable amounts. In this regard, Directors consider
that the credit risk of the Group is significantly reduced.

At 31 December 2009, the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.

At 31 December 2009, the Group had concentration of credit
risk in relation to bank balances as 90% (2008: 89%) of balances
are placed with 5 banks (2008: 5 banks).

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in relation to
frade receivables as 22% (2008: 29%) and 88% (2008: 81%) of
the Group's total frade receivables were due from its largest
customer and the 5 largest customers respectively within the
footwear manufacturing segment. The credit risk in relation to
these receivables is limited because they are footwear traders
with well established brand names and market positioning and
extensive geographical spread.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

27. TR T A (&)

() SREREEBEREEE)
EERR

2009 512 431 H - % 5 ¥ F K ag
S FCHRBNERMEERTEE - Bl
REEMAERSYREBERYBE
ANEERBRESARAEEMBMNR
KA HBACERAEMEEEENKRE
B MARAREBTHOMBERIA
B BRI 29 K EE -

REEERARBAEZERE AEENER
EERR-—BABBEETEERSE
EEMEREMEREF - ARRRER
BRETBAM DB EIE R o BRI IASN
FEETENGERSHRRTZEE
SEEHAIIREIS - AR EE
WmE & EIEHRANRERBE - stk

EERRAEENEERAREX
R o

2009F12A31 H » HRRZEFRE
BREFMRT WADESHEERR
AR -

FA2009F 128310 &N & EETH
THBETNEERR  RELER 0%
(2008 : 89%) HISRITAEEA D BITF R 5K
$R17 (2008 : 5KRTT) °

REBMMEAZE S EREREFTNEE
Ek  AAEESZATEFRS KEFHE
W B 5855 Bl A = B I E 5 BE 3K
4 EEH) 22% (2008 - 29%)&88%(2008 :
81%) - MREZH AME R KRTE
i EARENBEEME - EZ%JEWETK
MIEERRAR -



(8)  FiNanciAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PoLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquipity Risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the operations
of the Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The following fable details the remaining contractual maturity
of the Group for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
according fo the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes principal cash flows.

e MBHRRIE

() SREAMREERBEZERBEEKGE)
RBES R

RERERBESR R - NEBEE
MK AEEEEER RN AR ER
HESRABRRSMRITENRE R
BEFEYKF -

TRALAEBENFTESRE E R G
BRFH DERSRBENARKERR
eRnEREBEANEEARFENEOR AN
I ARBEFEASHRER

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables TEBNE % R FIF B R
Carrying
Total amount
undiscounted at
Less than 1-3 cash i
1 month months flows 31.12.2009
DR 1-3 REH 31.12.2009
118A @A BeRAE BREE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FTHERT AT FTAERT THERT
2009
Non-derivative FTESHEE
financial liabilities
Trade and other B 5 KREAM
payables FERTFRIE 106,502 83,984 190,486 190,486
Amounts due fojointly  FE FEEHEH]
controlled entities EERUE 17,650 - 17,650 17,650
Financial guarantee BB ER
confract & 38,000 - 38,000 -
162,152 83,984 246,136 208,136

o
(€]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FMH

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(8)  FiINaNcIAL Risk MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND PoLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquipity Risk (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables (continued)

27. TR T A (&)

() SREREEBEREEE)
RBESERE (&)

HEEERFERR K ()

Carrying
Total amount
undiscounted af
Less than 1-3 cash 31.12.2008
1 month months flows i
S 1-3 AREEER 31.12.2008
1EA & A RemEsE BREE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FAT FAT TAT
2008
Non-derivative FTELRERE
financial liabilities
Trade and other B 5 REAM
payables FERIRIE 187,920 83,141 271,061 271,061
Amounts due fo jointly  FEfTEREIEH]
controlled entities EBUE 28,006 - 28,006 28,006
215,926 83,141 299,067 299,067

The amount included above for financial guarantee contract
is the maximum amount the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers that it is more likely than not that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

BRERPBERGOTIMET N RZE
REZPRER > NEBERSHFBEZR
Ee® - BHBEAREHR A5E
RARAUEEARZRFENEMNEEE -
A ERZFTOTMERE  LHE
XERTONAZEERRE  AJER
BERERRHREMEE -
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

()

27. €W T A (&)

FAR VALUE (c) A¥EE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities SREERSRBENATEATD

are determined as follows: BTIHEARARE -

. the fair value of financial assets with standard . Bt — AR R Bl R R R0 PAVE
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid BRBMHZISNESHEE
markets are determined with reference to quoted NAFEBEIZETSHR
market bid prices; and MEAELRBLEMET

&

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial . HthemEERERBERD
liabilities are determined in accordance with ANFEEDIZEBEMANT
generally accepted pricing models based on BEXNIZRUEBRRSRINA
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from AEKRITMIGUERANRZ
observable current market fransactions. SHERNBEMET °

Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BEERE  NERABIRTIREH

assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the KAAENEREERESRBERD

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair EEEREENATEERE
values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the BB REE S EME RN FIEE

consolidated statement of financial position iE

The following table provides an analysis of financial TERACRITAEFHEAURFEER

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial BRZEMF2(MEHEREQAF

recognition at fair value, all grouped into Level 1 based BEAZNEEMBEAE —R)

on the degree to which the fair value is observable. WA - E—MATEESE IR

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from B R EERRIR GBI TS

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical B CREEHRE) o

assets.

31.12.2009
HKD’000
FExT

Financial assets at FVTPL ZRBRRAVEETENSREE

Held-for-frading investments #FEEEIRE 321

Available-for-sale financial ~ AIft$HE

assets SRMEE

Listed equity securities R ES 1

Listed debentures FHES 41,530

Total BeE 41,852

(@)
~N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 29 October 2008, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of a subsidiary, Bright Boom Holdings Limited
(“Bright Boom”), an investment holding company. Bright Boom
owned the entire issued share capital in Keenson Asia Limited
("Keenson”), which was principally engaged in property
holding. The net assets of Bright Boom together with Keenson
af the date of disposal were as follows:

NET ASSETS DISPOSED OF EHEEEFHE
Investment properties wEME
Other receivables H A EUER R
Other payables HAbERERR
Gain on disposal HE R
Total consideration wRE
Satisfied by: BAT AL -
Cash Re
Deferred consideration (Note i) EERAE (D)
Share consideration (Note i) & RAE GEil)
Cash inflow arising on disposal: HEREENBESRE
Cash consideration BERE
Notes:

i The deferred consideration included in other receivables had
been settled by cash by the purchaser in 2009.

ii. The share consideration included in held-for-trading investments
represents 4,000,000 shares of Bel Global Resources Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Exchange, at HKD1.25 per
share at the acquisition date.

28.

& B 2 F

M2008F10A29H » AR BIHE—=E
DB EIERRA I E A & Bright Boom
Holdings Limited ([ Bright Boom ) &Y
2EEBITHRA - Bright Boom B
MEMNBERAR(TRH]) 2B ET
AR - 2R EYERSF < Bright
Boom k@MW EBHMEEFEN
T

29.10.2008
HKD'000
T

96,422
1,030
(1,038)

96,414
13,586

110,000

96,000
2,000
5,000

110,000
96,000
it

FIAE B ER R EERBEHRE S
2009 FLAR & A -

ii. FIAFEE B RA MR MR ERRIE
H 94,000,000 fx B & RHKERZERSE
RAE (RE AT EWHATE) B -
FRAEEB1.2587T -
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B R F M

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the Group issued financial
guarantee fo a bank in respect of banking facilities granted to
a jointly controlled entity. The aggregate amount that could
be required to be paid if the guarantee was called upon in
entirety amounted to HKD38,000,000 (2008: Nil), none of which
has been utilised by the jointly controlled entity during the
year.

OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP As LESSEE

The Group made the following minimum lease payments
during the year as follows:

Operating lease rentals LATNIE B #4e

in respect of: HEMES :
Minimum lease payments SRAEZE

— Plants -5

— Retail shops —ZEE
Contingent rentals RS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments for plants
and retail shops under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth yearinclusive E_FZFEHF (BEERMT)

29.

30.

HREE

M2009F 128310 K"EEA—HE
ZHIE R IRITARVER —RITH AT
BR WERITZER AEXXNNE
% 78 /3 38,000,000 7% 7T, (2008 : #&) o 4F
W ZAREHERY RPPZRITH
i o

REHE
REBMBERA

AREBRFAEL AT REEERA :

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET THET
33,734 32,086
3,027 1,086
10,032 4,053
46,793 37.225

RARERRR  AEERES N WESE
ATABENCERENBERLTER
BHARSERERE  HIHBANS
W

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FET TET
24,732 38,447
30,578 71,897

55,310 110,344

(@)
O
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30. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

THE GROUP As LESSEE (CONTINUED)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its plants and retail shops. Leases are
negotiated for lease terms of 1 fo 5 years.

The above lease commitments represent basic rents only and
do not include confingent rents payable in respect of certain
retail shops leased by the Group. In general, these contingent
rents are calculated with reference to the turnover of relevant
retail shops using pre-defermined formulae. It is not possible
fo estimate in advance the amount of such contingent rent
payable.

THe GrouP As Lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HKD6,199.000 (2008: HKD4,147,000). All investment properties
of the Group are held for rental purposes. The investment
properties held for rental purposes have committed fenants in
the next 2 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FR

In the second fo fifth yearinclusive SE_FZFAFE (BEEREME)

30.
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REHE (|
AEEBEREA (K

0 TR HOB Ty A B A B TR
FERIEHHNHES - BOEHEEA
E5ERE .

FREEAEEEEAES  BETERE
AEEHENE TEEHHORNRA
He - —RMNE  ZERRHELTH2E
HETERENEXBERBLEEN
BAFE EEMGARNAEIAES
B EBI AAIT

REBEBHAA

FR - FTEYELHEKRALAEG6,199,000
7 7T(2008 © 4,147,000387T0) © ANEEH
FIEREMETFERERSR - RAK2
FRBEHNERRNREMEERHN
e -

MARER - REHREPFTLARK
REEERBESHWT :

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
TR T
5,899 4,893
6,496 8,438
12,395 13,331
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B Rz M

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure inrespect of ~ AEN(GEA B TR

the acquisition of property, plant 124t &UEE % -
and equipment contracted for EESE
but not provided in the EHZER

consolidated financial statements st

Capital expenditure in respect of AT E#E
the construction of investment MWW ARETLER
property authorised but KIE B Y S EE
not contracted for - Vi

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”) for all its qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% or HKD1,000 in maximum of relevant payroll
costs fo the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The subsidiaries of the Company in PRC are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
government of PRC. The retirement scheme confributions,
which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of the relevant subsidiaries’ employees, are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period to which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the scheme.

The Group also participated in defined contribution refirement
schemes organised by the relevant local government
authorities in other jurisdictions where the Group operates.
Certain employees of the Group eligible for participating in
the retirement schemes are entitled to retirement benefits from
the schemes. The Group is required to make confributions to
the refirement schemes up to fime of retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resigned before
their retirements, at a percentage that is specified by the local
governments.

31.

32.

BAERE

2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FERT TET
1,880 958
252,041 -

BB R EHE

AEBRMAERBEENCEREER
ToEERGIEAEeFE(RESE
B -mEeHANEEARNEENE
ESRAER  TAERAZHNESS
B AEESBBEN T EREN 5% K
51,0008 TERBESHEMHEZR - W
RETABMBS O -

ARBRFBEMNER R R BEBFE
EMERERRABAEKE - IR
REEE R IRABENBE A REEN T
EMETADOLAE  YREHEBAARE
It 55 Y B 2 B B JE R RET B RET A

FazElaR -

AEETSERNEBEEEEBNE M A
ERE IR B0 A8 B IR AR P A SROE HERUR IR
FHE e REBNAERZIRING B
BEAEZEZEAENRRERN - K
SEAREHBRFRENE D L RAZ
SRAFBEEHER BEEARERER
BARRBLE - TERERRAANBENERE

—_
—_—
—_
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REeLATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following
fransactions with its jointly confrolled entities:

Nature of transactions REMHE
Sales SHE
Sourcing income R A
Interest income FLEMA
Management fee income BEEBERA
Royalty fee charge =R

CoMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits R EEA
Post-employment benefits BIHEREREN

On 23 January 2009, Mr. Li Kwok Lung Alfred Ronald (“Mr.
Li") fendered his resignation as chairman and executive
Director. At its own discretion, the Board resolved to
make a payment of HKD12,800,000 to Mr. Li.

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
is determined by the Board having regard to the
performance of the individuals and market frends.

mEMBRRIE

()

(2)

BEALRS

AT :

2009 2008

HKD'000 HKD'000

FERT T

21,376 100,984

491 -

5,230 3,463

177 2,090

(590) (803)
FETEASEM

FR EZRHBEIZEEARN
BT

2009 2008
HKD'000 HKD'000
FET TR
30,252 14,370
591 456
30,843 14,826

200941 A23 8 - =BT A
(IFZREDEHEFERATES -
BEESRBHAE  AEETEHBHE
1& 12 5 4 2 1712,800,00078 7T ©

BEENTEEBAESNFHIMIAE
EREMNXRBEETSBEMETE -
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34. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

34. RATMBRRKRBRE

ANAR 2009 12 A 31 HEV B Bk &

The following is the summarised statement of financial position

w

S E600C[E 7 8 B BB H Lk

of the Company as at 31 December 2009: BENT -
2009 2008
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHT
Investments in subsidiaries BERKB AR 988 988
Other receivables HAb AR 251 721
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHI B~ RIZRIE 1,265,134 1,228,125
Bank balances and cash RITER RIS 203,986 97,418
1,470,359 1,327,252
Other payables HA SRR 521 556
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHE AR 515,834 377,751
516,355 378,307
954,004 948,945
Capital and reserves AR R
Share capital &N 436,011 436,011
Reserves (Note) 4 () 517,993 512,934
954,004 948,945
Note: it
RESERVES &
Share
Share  Contributed options Retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
REHE BHRG  BRERE B1ER WeE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T FAT FHT FHBT FHT
At 1 January 2008 20081 A1H 364,638 63,561 15,343 58,791 502,333
Profit for the year FE A - - - 48,970 48,970
Dividend paid BARRE - - - (38,369) (38,369)
Lapse of share options KAk P - - (1,206) 1,206 -
At 31 December 2008 72008 12A31H 364,638 63,561 14,137 70,598 512,934
Profit for the year FEEF - - - 22,499 22,499
Dividend paid BEfRE - - - (17,440) (17,440)
Lapse of share options KB NR A - - (14,137) 14,137 -
At 31 December 2009 7420096128318 364,638 63,561 - 89,794 517,993

ARBINEHBHBTI BB ONER
AIRMMEY R FEE - BBR1995F2 A
Y HEERBEAER - ARF EYKHEZH
BRRMEITORD ZEE

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the group reorganisation on 9 February 1995.
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35.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and ofher key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are as follows:

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND
AbVANCE 10 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Determining whether the interests in jointly controlled entities
and advance to jointly confrolled entities is impaired requires
an estimation of the share of present value of the estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated by the investees
and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the investments,
and a suitable discount rate in order fo calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No
impairment loss had been recognised in 2008 and 2009 as
the recoverable amounts exceed the carrying amount of the
interests in jointly controlled entities and advance to jointly
confrolled entities. As at 31 December 2009, the carrying
amount of inferests in jointly controlled entities and advance
fo jointly controlled enftities were HKD56,778,000 (2008:
HKD78,272,000) and HKD171,110,000 (2008: HKD127,749,000)
respectively.

35.

HF T RERZNEERR

HRBROEZBERRARE B LA
ATBEREEMEMEERRCF RER
TEMBFEENEENE BN REE
BAEABRNERRER) OERMAT

HEZHERBRBRTHEZHERN
fhEt R E

BELRZEHEERERTHEREHE
RTTHERT DT ERMEEREE
HERRMELEZRERRRREEZ
BEHRE  KEGMERTEHRR
B MERALESRELRELS - 8
AEEESBEARERE BAAEENGHE
BEERZEHEEREARTHEREHE
REAEREE - B 2008 F K 2009 F I £
R E R 1E - B 2009F 127318
EEEHIEREBRTERENEEN
iR @ 18 9 5l 456,778,000 7T (2008 :
78,272,000 7T ) & 171,110,0007% 7T
(2008 : 127,749,000 7T) °
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Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Subsidiary
il

Canray Int' Limited

Cashmaster Profits Limited

Chi Yuen Developments
Limited

ERURARLA

Cosmo Group Holdings
Limited

Continuance Enferprises
Limited

Guangzhou Panyu Xingtaiy
Footwear Indusfry and
Commerce Co. Ltd.

ENERERERARAT

Fuging Grand Galafica
BBER

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
#MARL/
Bk
Fend

BVI
EBRLHE

BVI
EBRLHE

BVI/PRC
HEELER/
Gl

BVI
EBRLHE

BVI
EBRLHE

PRC
(Co-operative
joint venture)

il

(BEtZ)

PRC

(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
il
UIEEELR)

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Paid up,
issued and
registered
share capital
AR
BAR
BRRE

Ordinary USD1
LAk %n

Ordinary USD1
Lak1En

Ordinary USD1
Lak1%n

Ordinary
UsD10,000
LAk 10,000% 7T

Ordinary USD1
Lak1En

Registered capital
RMB68,260,876
HMER
68260876 TARH

Registered capital
USD700,000
HMER

700,000 %7T

36. TEMBAAESR

Proportion of nominal valve
of issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
KARAREN
BRfT/3R
PREEELE
2009 2008

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
Hi GE3 Bk i
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
100% - 100% -
- 100% - 100%
- 92.78% - 92.78%
- 100% - 100%

72009 F 20084 12 31 H » R A]
T E2MBELRFBNT

Principal
activities

IRED

Footwear trading

ERES

Footwear trading

ERES

Footwear
manufacturing
ERGE

Investment
holding
REBK

Investment
holding
RE®E

Footwear
manufacturing
ERGE

Footwear
manufacturing
ERGE

(@)
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. FEHRBLARIEFR (&)
(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up, Proportion of nominal valve
incorporation/ issued and of issued/registered
registration registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
Rilave AR NGl Principal
Subsidiary Bk BIR BET/ER activities
HEAR e BERE NREAENLE TEEY
2009 2008
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B B L i
Holey Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKD2 - 100% - 100%  Footwear trading
BEZHERAT B L@k HEZS
Liang Shing Industries Hong Kong Ordinary HKD72,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
Limited Bis Non-voting management
REEZERAT deferred (Note) services
HKD1,428,000 RULEIRR
LAk 72,0007
FARZREN
BITR (F)
1,428,0007% T
Liang Shing Industries Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - 100%  Footwear
(HK) Limited B HKD10,000 marketing and
REABX(HE)ERAA LAk trading
10,0007 HEZHERES
Lucky Port Trading Hong Kong Ordinary USD2 - 100% - 100%  Footwear
Limited B 3 VEI marketing and
trading
HEZHERES
Misto Worldwide Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment
HBRUHE eI holding
RELR
Power Plus Limited BVI Ordinary USD1 - 100% - 100%  Investment
HBRUHE eI holding

RERR
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(CONTINUED)

Subsidiary
WEAH

Stateway Enterprises Limited
AREEERAR

Symphony Resources Limited
MEARERAR

Takson Asia Limited
BhHERAR

Zenith Bilion Trading Limited
EEEHERAR

Zhongshan Jingmei

TS

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation
s/
BER
e

BVI
RERLHS

Hong Kong
ik

Hong Kong
ik

Hong Kong
EE

PRC

(Wholly foreign
owned enterprise)
e
NEEERE)

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Paid up,
issued and
registered
share capital
BéR
BITR
BRRE

Ordinary USD1
TER =

Ordinary HKD2
TER2ET

Ordinary
HKD10,000
EER
10,0007

Ordinary HKD2
TER2ET

Registered capital
USD21,500,000

Fralipe
21,500,000% 7T

36. TEMBARER (&)

Proportion of nominal valve
of issued/registered

capital held
by the Company
NG
BRT/ER
HRERELE
2009 2008

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B B B% i
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%

Principal
activities

TEED

Footwear Trading
BEEES

Trading of
footwear,
apparel,
swimwear
and accessories

B RE K
FR R Bt

Footwear
purchasing
HERE

Footwear frading
EREES

Footwear
manufacturing
RS

~N

S E600C[E 7 8 B BB H Lk



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B R FH

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMEARIEHR (&)
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(CONTINUED)
Place of Paid up, Proportion of nominal valve
incorporation/ issued and of issued/registered
registration registered capital held
and operation share capital by the Company
Rilave AR NGl Principal
Subsidiary Bk BIR BET/ER activities
HEAR e BERE NREAENLE TEED
2009 2008
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
EE B BE i3

Zhongshan Huali PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Footwear

FILER] (Wholly foreign USD2,500,000 manufacturing
owned enterprise| EERE
i Rjig-v
(NEBERE) 2,500,000%7T

Stateway Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital Footwear

i (Hm) (Wholly foreign VND119,989,391,000 manufacturing
owned enterprise| HEx HRRE
il 119,989,391,000 i &

NEEERE)

Confinuance Vietnam Vietnam Registered capital Footwear

B (Wholly foreign VND45,777,750,000 manufacturing
owned enterprise| HEx HRE
il 45,777,750,000 i &

NEEERE)

HERERHERAA PRC Registered capital Trading, refaling
(Wholly foreign RMB35,728,529 and distribution
owned enterprise) HEx of apparel,

i 3572859 T AR swimwear
(NEBERE) and accessories

TR BARER
RHES
TERDH

Al
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Note: The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are neither entitled
to vote nor any dividend and are, on a winding-up, only entitled
out of the surplus assets of the Company, to a return of the
capital after a total sum of HKD100,000,000,000,000 has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt security at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

36. TEMBARER (&)

i BEREENEEERFSEALENST
BREEN TTEFHEMAMBEIR
BoYRBEE RAAEE KRB
100,000,000,000,000 % 7T F 4~ 22 & #)
BBERHAEANR WA ENEARTN
RIHEE -

RS BRRANFEAEREREA - #
EMBATCDBITESKD -

BE=ZRA UWERIIMARBNERA
RIBREAEREREREBEENRT -
E=ZRRMREHRAMCHBRTNFAE
HEegsE R ARSI BRITE

O
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RESULTS

Revenue

Profit (Loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit (Loss) for the year

Profit (Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Minority interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Minority inferests

g S ES

B
Bt An 2 (EHR)

B
FREN (EER)

e EM (E1R) -
EN/NSES U
PERER

BEREE

EERE
BERE

EAN/NSES DN
et
DB R A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12831 AL

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FAT FAxT FAT FHET
1,784,907 2,050,584 1,849,207 1,861,604 1,852,511
29,573 (231,245) 116,252 222,172 257,635
(10,785) 1,554 (18,216) (7.444) (21,888)
18,788 (229,691) 98,036 214,728 235,747
19,008 (226,508) 94,929 207,287 215,950
(220) (3,183) 3,107 7,441 19,797
18,788 (229,691) 98,036 214,728 235,747
As at 31 December
M12831H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
HKD’'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FHT FAExT FAT FExT
1,747,700 1,792,803 2,057,715 2,023,750 1,915,451
(412,227) (488,599) (501,677) (505,171) (480,290)
1,335,473 1,304,204 1,556,038 1,518,579 1,435,161
1,302,853 1,271,373 1,520,668 1,480,868 1,404,891
32,620 32,831 35,370 37,711 30,270
1,335,473 1,304,204 1,556,038 1,518,579 1,435,161




EQUIPMENT

Name/location

A1

Unit Nos. 6 to 10,

portions of Unit Nos. 1 and 5,

10/F, Island Place Tower,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point,

Hong Kong

Unit 16-3, Lane 73,
Rau Ping Road,
Tsyh Torng,

Yun Lin Hsien,
Taiwan, R.O.C.

Land and factory complex
at Zhangjiabian Village,
Huoju Development Zone,
Zhangshan City,
Guangdong Province,
People's Republic of China

Parficulars of Major Properties F E¥£EF

Bk
itA
HEF5105
BEAE102
125583 Ef
K6 E 1057 &S

REREAE
HiRg
BTH
7351623

hEARHNE
BRETILT
NIEFIEE
RRIE
T R

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT AND

Lease term

HEH

Medium

R

Long
R

Medium

R

(A) 2ER/WE - BERREHN

S

Gross floor
area
BEEEE
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

14,090

43,446

2,019,511

Use
A

Commercial

[GES

Industrial

I

Factory and
Staff quarters
TITK&
SIEE

Effective
held
B¥EE
g3

(%)

100

100

100

N
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Particulars of Major Properties E E¥£EF

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (B) 2 EAREMENYE

Effective
Gross floor held
Name/location Lease term area Use BEREE
E1-98: 11 HeEm BESEER R 5 4:3
(sq.ft.) (%)
(FHR)
Unit Nos. 1to 10, B Medium 20,090 Commercial 100
3/F Island Place Tower, itA i [EES
No. 510 King's Road, HEBSI09
North Point, BERE3E
Hong Kong 1 Z 105584z
Unit Nos. 2 to 4, B Medium 6,000 Commercial 100
portions of Unit Nos. 1 and 5 itA i Hj [EES
10/F, Island Place Tower, REBS5105%
No. 510 King's Road, BERE0ME
North Point, 2EARENR
Hong Kong 1 255580 EfL
Flat E, 8/F, &5 Medium 975 Residential 100
One Island Place, pig= ki fE=c
No. 51 Tanner Road, F2E51 5%
North Point, VEIEW 1
Hong Kong BIEEZE
Flat G, 18/F, &5 Medium 1,013 Residential 100
One Island Place, pig= ki fE=c
No. 51 Tanner Road, FNEE51 5%
North Point, VB R
Hong Kong 181EGE
Flat E, 11/F, &5 Medium 975 Residential 100
Two Island Place, i HE fE=c
No. 55 Tanner Road, FEE55%
North Point, VB 2 R

Hong Kong 1EEE



(CONTINUED)

Name/location

A1

Flat D, 8/F,
Three Island Place,
No. 61 Tanner Road,
North Point,
Hong Kong

Portion B, 5/F,
No. 32 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong,
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Unit C, 2/F,
Hop Ming Factory Building,
No. 8 On Yip Street,
Chai Wan,
Hong Kong

Unit 3, Flat 113 to 114,
123 to 124, No. 21-1,
Wenyi Road, Shenhe District,
Shenyang
People's Republic of China

Lot No. Shenbei 2008-050
North Puhe Road,
Hushi Tai Development Zone,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province,

People's Republic of China

Lots No. Shenbei (G) 2008-017,
North Puhe Road,
Hushi Tai Development Zone,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province,

People's Republic of China

Parficulars of Major Properties F E¥£EF

Bk
itA
FHEE61H
BB 3
8EDE

RN
Bz
JIEIE 3257
5IEBHE

&5

ZEAB
AEIHmAE
218 CEfiI

PEARENEEES
EBTBE SR
21-1%—E1-1-3
1-1-4 R =f81-2-3+
1-2-4TARE

hEARANEREES
&S
RAGERR
SEAAEIL
J&1E 2008-050 %

hEARANEREES
&S
RAGERR
SEAAEIL
&1L (G) 2008-017 %%

(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Lease term

HEH

Medium

R

Medium

R

Long
R

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

R

(B) 7EAREWENN= (K

Gross floor
area
BEEEE
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

597

4,462

4,864

11,214

100,146

45,166

Use
A

Residential
(e

Industrial

I

Industrial

I

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Industrial

I

Effective
held
B¥EE
g3

(%)

100

100

100

100

100

100

N
w
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Information to Stakeholders F|zEARIE S,

SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting fo be sent fo Shareholders together with a
proxy form on or before 22 April 2010.

Date: Thursday, 17 June 2010

Time: 11:30 a.m.

Venue: The Boardroom, 10th Floor, Island Place Tower,
510 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong

DIVIDEND

Final dividend: HKD0.013 per ordinary share
Book close period: Tuesday, 15 June 2010 to
Thursday, 17 June 2010
Payment date for final dividend: on or about Mondayy, 5 July 2010

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at the 26th Floor of Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4.30 p.m. on Monday, 14 June 2010.

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report containing financial stfatements and notes
to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009 is published on both the websites of the Company (www.
symphonyholdings.com) and the Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Address:  10th Floor, Island Place Tower, 510 King's Road
North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Name: The Bank of Bermuda Limited
Address: 6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address:  26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 29801333

Facsimile: (852) 28108185

BRERXE

BREAFASEBAFBERRERZARBER

2010 4 A 22 Bk LARTZ 3% F IR R AR 3R A F

AEBEN

HE§: 201056 A 17 BEHM

B : EF1TEE305

e BEILLAREES5105
BEAEIOEASEE

iz 5.

HIRR S - §%@0.01338 T

TE@PHIR - 201066 A15HEH %
2010 6 A17 HEHmM

HRR SR EE - 495020107 RS HEH—

TERERDBRER

BE AR BRI, - BB 20106 6
R14BEB—TF 430U - BHEBE
X RAABRE R E AR RN RGBS E
REESHESGEERMERAR U A
BT EEAER 28 S WER L2648 -

F8]

HAEEHZE20FI12A3NBEFENAR

AMBHRRMMBEREMEFNER - D51

R RFPXHEE  ERARABE (Wwww.

symphonyholdings.com) M B X4 &

(www.hkex.com.hk) FIJ& °

HMRER

#ik © Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

BMEERER

FTELEHEME

ik - HAILBHREES105%
BIERE10E

BEH : info@symphonyholdings.com

FERGBF

BRE

£ : The Bank of Bermuda Limited

Hodk © 6 Front Street
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

BROBFELE

BRDE

£ SEBRBERAR

st - EBB(T 2EABR 285
SEWEFL 2618

T ¢ (852) 29801333
{HH : (852) 28108185
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